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ABBREVIATIONS

L

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

”Group"

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC”

the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings
Limited (formerly known as BEP
International Holdings Limited)

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

*  For identification purpose only
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ABBREVIATIONS

&

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”
HKS”
“RMB"

“yss”

u%"

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

United States dollars

per cent.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ME =

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—BHLEE

2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —tF b=k
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Operational Results BT
Revenue Wz 2,392,876 1,872,541 27.8%
Gross profit E A 303,177 239,632 26.5%
Profit from operations =il 309,586 143,989 115.0%
Profit for the year REZ 5 F 233,976 65,248 258.6%
Profit attributable to owners of KRTHEA AR
the Company 233,638 66,348 252.1%
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2018 2017 Change
—E2-N\F —t & gz
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Financial Position B RN
Non-current assets FRBEE 264,157 261,024 1.2%
Current assets mBEE 3,185,406 1,603,255 98.7%
Current liabilities mEBAE (2,775,318) (1,493,013) 85.9%
Net current assets MENVE EFE 410,088 110,242 272.0%
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (66) (66) =
Total equity AR 674,179 371,200 81.6%
Non-controlling interests FEfE Hxﬁsﬁ{l 8,264 8,053 2.6%
Total equity attributable to RATHEE ANEILEERETE
owners of the Company 682,443 379,253 79.9%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) SREARZEF (7B14l) 1.108 0.318
Key Ratio Analysis FELRHIN
Gross profit margin RS 12.7% 12.8%
Operating profit margin HE R FI 2R 12.9% 7.7%
Net profit margin 4 FI 2R 9.8% 3.5%
Returns on equity (Note 1) EOERE (HT1) 34.2% 17.5%
Current ratio (Note 2) MENLE ([ 5F2) 1.15 1.07
Gearing ratio (Note 3) BEEBBLE (Hi3) 55.5% 52.2%
Notes: Yoz
it Returns on equity: Profit attributable to owners of the  1: - EE R N/N ﬂ%ﬁ}\ﬂﬁ{ﬁjﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ@($@
Company divided by total equity attributable to owners of the BEA ANE(GREZS AR
Company
2: Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities 2: REH R EHEERUALESEE
3: Gearing ratio: Total borrowings divided by total equity  3: BEBRBHLE: /Z@Féﬁ ARANEIER AFE
attributable to owners of the Company plus total borrowings. {5 F/géﬁ,ﬁ@ BMEaEg - RN 2; —N\NEN
Total borrowings as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are —E—++EFE=—RA=+—HZBEESRAE

HK$851,210,000 and HK$414,080,000 respectively.

851 210,0007% 7T £2414,080, oooﬁé
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Hu Haifeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 May 2017)
Mr. Sin Lik Man
(appointed on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Zhong Guoxing
(appointed on 15 May 2017,
resigned on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Wang Zhonghe
(resigned on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Ren Haisheng
(resigned on 3 August 2017)
Mr. Zhang Honghai
(resigned on 30 June 2017)
Mr. Cheung Ming
(resigned on 15 May 2017)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zheng Gang
(appointed on 28 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Dr. Liu Yongping
(appointed on 5 June 2018)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Dr. Liu Yongping
(appointed on 5 June 2018)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Mr. Hu Haifeng
(appointed on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Zhong Guoxing
(appointed on 15 May 2017, resigned on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Cheung Ming
(resigned on 15 May 2017)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2ATEH

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David
Mr. Hu Haifeng
(appointed on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Zhong Guoxing
(appointed on 15 May 2017, resigned on 2 March 2018)

Mr. Cheung Ming
(resigned on 15 May 2017)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Hu Haifeng

(appointed on 3 August 2017)
Dr. Liu Yongping

(appointed on 5 June 2018)
Mr. Ren Haisheng

(resigned on 3 August 2017)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Hu Haifeng
Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Sin Lik Man
(appointed on 27 October 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian
(appointed on 27 October 2017)
Ms. Hui Yee Ling
(resigned on 10 October 2017)
AUDITOR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

STOCK CODE

2326
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND HEAD

OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 3201-09, 32/F
Shui On Centre

No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited,
Hong Kong Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch

China Construction Bank Corporation
Hang Seng Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

AMREE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

FRHE

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018
(the “Year”).

Despite the challenging business environment and the
complex global economy during the Year, with management’s
determination and efforts, the Group recorded profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$233,638,000,
representing an increase of 252.1% as compared to
HK$66,348,000 in the previous year. The Group has performed
well during the Year and managed to maintain a sustainable,
steady and healthy development.

The Group has completed the acquisition of £ E #EERIRE
R4 A R AR A A (literally translated as Ningxia Huaxia
Integrated Waste Recycling Company Limited) (the “Waste
Recycling Company”) and £ E KT #HEHEBR 2 Al (literally
translated as Ningxia Tianyuan Power Generation Company
Limited) (the “Power Company”) in Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region, the PRC in year 2015/16 in accordance with the Group's
business development strategic plan. These acquisitions have
expanded the Group’s scope of business, diversified business
risks and laid the foundation in the field of environmental
protection and energy conservation businesses, and the
strategic blueprint has been accomplished in general.

EBRE

FARBURRAAFNEEFEMARREARFER
HHBEAR (5l [AREDBE_T—-N\F=A
=t BLEFE([RFE]) 2FH-

RAFE RELHIRRABES  BRERLELE
R EM EEEEETE TRIBRI{T AL EK
BARRQRHEA AFE1G ) F)233,638,000/8 7T ' A F
#66,348,00075 7T 18 /i1252.1% ° NE B R A FF XK
WRE WEAREHE BIRBERNERE-

AEEER -F—1/ —R"FERAREEBER
BRERE TRURBURTEEENREARZE
BEEBERRERGAMNBERRAR (RERRQA])
RBEERTHEAERAB([EHRF]) -ZFK
BEBAAKENEBRE  »HMEBRRIER
RETREEBRIFETERY  BREUEBREELRT
Bk o
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRE

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

During the Year, the operation in sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials improved as a result
of the Group’s tremendous effort to keep the aforementioned
business on the right track by monitoring the market
changes and communicating closely with our customers and
suppliers to understand their needs. Management of the
Group will continue to stay abreast of market trends, keep
close communications with customers and suppliers, so as to
maintain development of this operation.

The Power Company had recorded an increase in sales during
the year due to the full-year impact in its operation, as the
Group officially launched its production and sale of utilities
business in August 2016. The operation was steadily on track
during the Year, despite more machines have been deployed
and operated by the Power Company during the Year that may
affect the Power Company’s profit margin.

The Waste Recycling Company has continued to maintain
a high level of revenue with the support of its customers,
although experienced a decrease in revenue and profit margin
due to slowdown of the business. The Group’s management
will devote more marketing efforts on boosting the sales
and also minimise the operation expenses by exploring the
initiation of new technologies in the coming financial year.

EBRE (&)

RAFE REMHESBBEY AR IRRAE
BEMNRE ARARBECRAEXRE N BBE
EHSHRANRERMNEFPFREERBRERER
UNTHREERE K< Ll E%0 ESF#E - R
SEEEESERRETSHR  BEP RHER
BB BRERTBURBTZER-

HRAEBER - R"RFNAEARPELEE
RHEAAERER HENRFEEAELENS
FHEMNAFERSHERER -BEENAF
RAFERENEEESHEARTEETIAF
MAMBER EEEBRAFERS L8 -

BEEBERREGE R RANBEXRTE  BRE
RAEEREPHXF THERE R KEKT - NE
B IR A O T BB IR DK 2 35 ) 2 (R A 8
S NEEERARMAHEMRSEEER-
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2018/19, given the confronted recovery
in major economies in the world, the Group continues to be
cautiously optimistic in the China market demand for metal
minerals and related industrial materials. However, in light of
the challenging economic and operating environment, with
the increased risks of trade protectionism and uncertainties
on tariffs and the price of commodities, our Group will
constantly review and adjust its existing business strategies
and operations in order to minimise the Group’s business risks
arising from trading of metal minerals and related industrial
materials by imposing more stringent control upon risks
management relating to exchange rates, interest rates and cash
flows.

The Group will continue to take advantage of its financing
capability as a listed company in an effort to explore new
investment opportunities with growth potential. We will also
consider the feasibility to increase the production capacities
in our existing waste recycling and production of utilities
business. The Group targets to get sustainable business
opportunities to widen the income stream and usher in
additional business opportunities for the Group, laying the
foundation for the Group’s future growth and maximising
shareholders’ return.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

| hereby express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the Board
to all shareholders and business partners for their continuous
support, and to all directors and employees for their efforts and
contributions in the past Year.

Hu Haifeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW

X1 EER

OPERATIONS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was principally
engaged in sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials, production and sale of industrial products
and production and sale of utilities.

The Group had no significant material acquisitions or disposals
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Revenue and Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group recorded a significant
increase in revenue, from HK$1,872,541,000 for the year ended
31 March 2017 to HK$2,392,876,000 for the year ended 31
March 2018, representing increase of 27.8% as compared to
last year. The Group’s gross profit also increased by 26.5%
from HK$239,632,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
HK$303,177,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The increase in revenue and gross profit was mainly
attributable to the significant improvement of our
sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials business during the year under review. The Group
management has devoted tremendous effort to restore the
aforementioned business back to the right track by monitoring
the market changes and communicating closely with our
customers and suppliers to understand their needs. Together
with the support from our principal bankers, we have recorded
the sound revenue and gross profit for the year ended 31
March 2018. During the year under review, this segment
reported a segment revenue of HK$2,114,606,000 (Year ended
31 March 2017: HK$1,619,896,000) and a segment profit of
HK$258,183,000 (Year ended 31 March 2017: HK$153,109,000),
representing increase of 30.5% and 68.6% when compared to
last year.

Revenue Chart

Lo§
HK $'M
BEET
2,500 —
2,000
1,500

1,000

500

0

2016/17

2017/18

XX D E

BHE_Z—N\FZA=Z1+—HULEFE AEEFE
RERERFEESBBEMIEBEIERE £ER
HETXRERMUREERBEE L BER-

AEERBE_ZE—\FZA=Z+—HILFEL
EEANBERHLESE-
KERER

REBEE AEEZ WG RNIEEIN AEE
— T+ F=ZA=+—HIFE 21,872,541,000
BTENEEE T N\E-_A=Z+—HILFE

22,392,876,000/8 70 * B EF EF27.8% c AEE 2
EFNNMBAEE-_T—+tEF=-A=Z+—HILEEZ
239,632,000/ LI N126.5% 2 = —T— \F=A

—+—HBI-FE 303,177,000/ 7t °

WHEREFENETEAROEFERBREE
CERERDEABIERHNEBRABERE - A&E
EEEBRAAEER BFREEMBH MUK
HEFMMEEEREABRATREZE < it
EBELQ T -MEBINETEARBITZ NG
ﬁﬁ’ﬁ‘méﬁzi_;—/\i A=+— Eljtﬁl*ﬁ
BREKSLEFN REBEFEE LO2EE2®KS

$E U0 %52,114,606,0008 T (BEZE =T —+tF = A
=+ —HI-FE :1,619,896,000/ 7T ) & 5 8% 7
258,183,000 L (B2 —F—+tF=A=+—AH1t
FZ 153,109,000/ 7T ) * B AF 5 Al HN30.5% K&
68.6% °

Gross Profit Chart

EF
Gross Profit
HK $'M Margin (%)
ABBT EFNE (%)
400 - —15
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300
200
100
0
2016/17 2017/18
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EF O

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Gross Profit (continued)

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under EE EBIRREREE T A ERAQF (literally translated
as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling Company
Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”), we have recorded
the segment revenue of HK$111,338,000 (Year ended 31 March
2017: HK$133,073,000), representing decrease of 16.3% as
compared to last year. This segment reported a decrease in
its segment profit by 39.6%, from HK$34,066,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to HK$20,584,000 for the year ended 31
March 2018. The decrease in segment revenue and profit was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the sales of our industrial
products due to the slowdown of this segment business during
the second half of our financial year ended 31 March 2018. The
management will devote more marketing efforts on boosting
the sales and also optimize the operations by exploring the
initiation of new technologies.

RO (&)

WERERN (&)
REBEEREERGAEFMABRAA ([RRA
R ZEERHEETIXAERESM S RFI8X
B E111,3380008 L (BHE-E—+F=A
=+ —H1EFE 133,073,000 L) REFH D
163% kD BER D ERMNABE-T—tF
= A=+—HI-FZ 134,066,000/ T 139.6% %
HEz—_T—\F=A=+—HFEH20,584,000
BT p G KRR T EZRRIED BEEBR
HE_Z-—N\FZA=1+—HLFETEFRE"
STERERBEERL BEEEBBIRAESZEHEE
BHBIEE UEBKRKAANRNELLEE-
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

For the production and sale of utilities business under % &
KL EABR A A (literally translated as Ningxia Tianyuan
Power Generation Company Limited) (the “Power Company”),
we have recorded the segment revenue of HK$166,932,000
(Year ended 31 March 2017: HK$119,343,000), representing
increase of 39.9% as compared to last year. The Power
Company commenced its operation in August 2016 and as
the above segment revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017
only represented eight month’s time, this segment therefore
recorded a significant increase in segment revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2018 when compared to last year. Compared
with the segment profit of HK$42,749,000 made by the Power
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017, this segment
reported a segment profit of HK$13,219,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018, representing a decrease in segment profit
by 69.1%. The decrease in profit of this segment was mainly
attributable to the substantial increase in the production
material cost of the Power Company during the year under

review. Also, more machines have been deployed and operated
by the Power Company at the beginning of the year ended 31
March 2018, which led to the relatively higher depreciation
portion incurred for the year ended 31 March 2018 as
compared to last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

EHB O
EHERE ()
REEXRLRBARARA([ENARA)ZEE
REEAAEREBM T RMAKE S Hiks

166,932,000 T (HE=T—tF=A=+—H1t
if 119343000/%75) B R FIENN39.9% © F
AERZE—RNFENARBEE AU LEEHE
T—tFZA=t+—BHUEFEZ AR E &%)\
1.HZHTFEJ Eylﬂi/\%@i—i /\i:ﬁ:""_

ALFEZ R EREFEEEM-BLED

ARBE-Z—tF=A=1+— Etiféﬂ’h
i 42,749,000 7T A HREBE_ZT—N\F=
A=+—H1EFE2%® 5 3% 13,219,000% 7T -
*EMEA/\i S Ak 69.1% c iZ D e AR A EE

ARES TEAﬁﬁﬁifﬁ’Jiéﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁt
RN BHARRBE_ZT—N\F=A= +_
Hii&%ﬂﬁﬁ%&@f’ﬁ%;ﬁ% CEREE
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EF O

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily include staff costs, general
administrative expenses, exchange loss, depreciation and
amortization. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recorded the administrative expenses of HK$125,892,000
(Year ended 31 March 2017: HK$88,994,000), representing
increase of 41.5% as compared to last year. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to the fair value loss
on derivative financial instruments that were used to mitigate
the foreign currency risk of certain monetary assets and
liabilities of the Group.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded the
other income of HK$143,492,000 (Year ended 31 March 2017:
HK$5,032,000), and the substantial increase in other income
when compared to the other income last year was mainly
attributable to the net foreign exchange gain during the year
under review. The foreign exchange gain recorded was due to
the fluctuation of exchange rate of various foreign currencies,
mainly related to Renminbi and the United States dollars,
mostly arising from purchase transactions conducted with
overseas suppliers in foreign currencies and sales transactions
with Mainland customers in Renminbi.

Finance Costs

Finance costs significantly decreased by HK$28,280,000,
or 55.5% from HK$50,989,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017 to HK$22,709,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
The significant decrease of finance costs was mainly due
to the repayment of bank loan in August 2016, which has
substantially reduced the financial burden of the Group. The
Group management will carefully monitor the Group capital
structure and utilize the financial resources to meet its ongoing
operational requirements and business expansion.

EHOomE (&)

THEAX
THRAXEERFEE THRA - —RITRFEA - IME
EE EREE-BE_ZE-N\E=A=+—8
IEFE - ANEBSSTERFX125,892,0008 7T (#
E-F—tF=A=+—HILFE :88,994,000/%
TL) AT MNA.5%  THASZEMEZZAR
PTEEMIAZAREEBRIZC BETEERT
BEAERASEETEREERABZINE
2B

Hibug A
HE_Z-—N\FZAZ=Z1+—BLEFE KTEBH
BSHEAUA43,492,0008 T (BHE-ZE—+LF=A
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Profit for the year

During the year under review, we recorded a profit for the year
of HK$233,976,000, representing increase of 258.6% when
compared to the profit for the year of HK$65,248,000 in the
previous year. The increase in the Group’s profit for the year
is mainly attributable to the improvement in the result of
the Group’s sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business during the year ended 31 March
2018 and the increase in net foreign exchange gain as a result
of appreciation of RMB against USD during the year ended 31
March 2018.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$233,638,000 whereas
a comparable profit of HK$66,348,000 was recorded in the
previous year. This represented the basic earnings per share
of HK1.108 cent for the year ended 31 March 2018, whereas
a comparable basic earnings per share of HK0.318 cent was
recorded in the previous year.

Profit Attributable To Owners Of The Company Chart
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided by
banks. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had current assets
of HK$3,185,406,000 (31 March 2017: HK$1,603,255,000),
comprising cash and bank balances of HK$212,545,000 (31
March 2017: HK$15,165,000 together with HK$7,547,000
restricted bank deposits).

The Group's current ratio, calculated based on current assets
of HK$3,185,406,000 (31 March 2017: HK$1,603,255,000)
over current liabilities of HK$2,775,318,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$1,493,013,000), was at a healthy level of 1.15 (31 March
2017:1.07).

The trade payables terms of the Group’s sourcing and sale
of metal minerals and related industrial materials business
was mainly by letter of credit. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group’s trade payables and bills payables amounted to
HK$121,591,000 and HK$1,123,862,000 respectively (31 March
2017: HK$304,426,000 and HK$642,984,000); restricted bank
deposits amounted to HKSnil (31 March 2017: HK$7,547,000);
trade receivables and bills receivables amounted to
HK$96,962,000 and HK$2,277,019,000 respectively (31 March
2017: HK$447,911,000 and HK$1,043,584,000). The credit risk
on bills receivable is at a low level as such amounts are due by
banks with good reputation.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's equity attributable to owners
of the Company increased to HK$682,443,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$379,253,000). The increase in equity attributable to owners
of the Company was mainly due to the total comprehensive
income recorded by the Group during the year.

The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated based on total borrowings
of HK$851,210,000 (31 March 2017: HK$414,080,000)
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company
plus total borrowings of HK$1,533,653,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$793,333,000), was at 56% (31 March 2017: 52%).

During the year under review, the Group continued to
implement a prudent financial management policy to protect
the shareholders’ interest of the Group. With the amount
of liquid assets on hand together with advances and credit
facilities granted by banks, the management will keep
exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain financing
activities, with the support from financial and securities
institutions and professional advisors, to meet its ongoing
operational requirements and business expansions.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(continued)

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and conducted
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars.
The Group maintains a strategy in its foreign currency risk
management, primarily by including the estimated exchange
differences on currency exposure in our pricing of metal
minerals trade to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
risk on the Group's profit. The Group has entered into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge against the Group’s
currency exposure. The Group thus believes the current level of
bank balances, certain receivables and payables denominated
in Renminbi and United States dollars expose us to a
manageable foreign currency risk. The management is paying
vigilant attention to the fluctuation of Renminbi and closely
monitor the foreign currency exposure. The Group will further
consider using any appropriate financial derivatives to hedge
against the Group's currency risk and manage its exposure.

Borrowings and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank advances for
discounted bills of HK$851,210,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$414,080,000) which were secured by the Group's certain
bills receivables.

Restricted Bank Deposits
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no restricted bank deposits
(31 March 2017: HK$7,547,000).

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB5,167,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,438,000)
(31 March 2017: RMB11,811,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$13,323,000) mainly for acquisition of machineries,
equipment and related installation works for the Power
Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2017: nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAESRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Haifeng, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Member of
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Risk Management Committee

Aged 43, has been an employee of the Company as its deputy
chief executive officer since 23 November 2016 and has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 15 May 2017. Mr. Hu has been re-designated as
the chief executive officer and appointed as a member of the
risk management committee of the Company since 3 August
2017. From 2 March 2018, Mr. Hu has also been appointed
as chairman of the Board and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Hu graduated from Harbin University of Science and
Technology after completing its two-year curriculum for
an undergraduate program in accounting. Mr. Hu has then
been conferred a Bachelor of Management degree by Harbin
University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Hu has over 20 years of experience in the financial industry
and has worked in an urban credit cooperative and banks in
Mainland China, as well as an asset management company
in Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in marketing and
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBASRE

Mr. Sin Lik Man, Chief Financial Officer

Aged 39, has been an employee of the Company since October
2017. He has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 27 October 2017 and has been appointed as
the Executive Director of the Company on 2 March 2018. Mr.
Sin is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Sin received Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and further received Master in Accounting from
the Curtin University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Sin is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Sin has more than eighteen years of experience in financial
control, corporate finance and capital market relations and had
taken up senior management positions in several Hong Kong
listed companies. Mr. Sin has served as an independent non-
executive director in Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock
code: 1303) from December 2011 to September 2013. He was
appointed as the company secretary of West China Cement
Limited (stock code: 2233) from May 2010 to May 2012. He was
the investor relations general manager of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (formerly called Fook Woo
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 923) from June 2012 to
September 2013 and was appointed as company secretary
from June 2013 to September 2013. All the companies
indicated above with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zheng Gang

Aged 50, joined the Company as a Non-executive Director
in May 2018. Mr. Zheng obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Electronic Engineering from Xiamen University in July 1989 and
a degree of Master of Business Administration from University
of Wales, College of Cardiff in the United Kingdom (currently
known as Cardiff Business School) in April 1994.

Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in management in
the finance and investment industry. Mr. Zheng was an
independent non-executive director of China Internet
Investment Finance Holdings Limited (formerly known as Opes
Asia Development Limited) (stock code: 810) from July 2012 to
May 2013. Mr. Zheng has been an executive director of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) since August
2007. He has also been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Smart-Core Holdings Limited (stock code:
2166) since March 2016. All the companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee

Aged 58, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2009. Mr. Chan obtained his
Bachelor degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong in 1982, Master degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1987 and Master
degree in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. Mr. Chan is also a member of the CPA Australia.

Mr. Chan is the executive director of a consultancy company
engaging in providing financial investment consultancy
services. Mr. Chan has worked in the finance and commercial
field for more than 25 years. He had been the principal
corporate planner of Airport Authority Hong Kong and was
responsible for corporate planning in the areas of commercial
and financial strategies.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee

Aged 63, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2009. Mr. Siu obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull in
1995.

Mr. Siu is the managing director of Fortune Take International
Limited, a company engaging in providing business
consultancy services. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for more than 25 years. He had been the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America, responsible for business
development and credit risk management. Mr. Siu is also an
independent non-executive director of Sage International
Group Limited (stock code: 8082) and Get Nice Holdings
Limited (stock code: 64). All the companies indicated above
with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee, Member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
Aged 68, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in December 2013. Mr. Ng holds a Master’s
Degree in Commerce from Macquarie University, Sydney and is
an Australian Chartered Accountant and Chartered Secretary.
Mr. Ng had worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong
for 8 years. After leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong,
Mr. Ng has been and is currently the managing director of a
certified public accountants firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng was
also the Qualified Accountant for Air China Limited (stock code:
753) for the period from November 2005 to December 2008.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of
Herald Holdings Limited (stock code: 114). All the companies
indicated above with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.
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Dr. Liu Yongping, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee

Aged 62, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in June 2018. Dr. Liu graduated from Renmin
University of China Branch No.1(FEBI AR KEZE —5HK) in
1983 with a bachelor degree in law, and graduated from the
University of London in 1987 with a master degree in law. In
1994, he graduated from the University of Oxford with a doctor
of philosophy.

Dr. Liu has profound knowledge in the laws of the PRC, Hong
Kong and England. Dr. Liu is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Since
1994, Dr. Liu has embarked in areas on listing application for
PRC based companies in Hong Kong and work on merger and
acquisition. He is acquainted with matters concerning the
listing rules in Hong Kong.

Dr. Liu has been appointed as independent non-executive
directors of Yueda Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629)
and Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 401) since
June 2010 and February 2014, respectively. All the companies
indicated above with stock code are listed in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Ho Yan, Julian, Company Secretary, Authorised
Representative and Finance Senior Manager

Aged 38, joined the Company as the Company Secretary
in October 2017. He has obtained his degrees of Master of
Corporate Governance and Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. Leung has more than seventeen years of experience in
accounting, auditing and corporate governance. He served as
the chief financial officer and company secretary in Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code: 3608) from
2013 to 2017. Mr. Leung has worked in KPMG, an international
CPA firm, for over ten years. He has been responsible for various
sub-committees for The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants Hong Kong since 2016. The company indicated
above with stock code is listed in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials, production and
sale of industrial products and production and sale of utilities.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review” section
set out on pages 8 to 11 and pages 12 to 19 of this annual
report respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 63 to 64.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 192 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31
March 2018 amounted to approximately HK$31,502,000 (2017:
HK$38,289,000).

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2018 is nil (2017: approximately
HK$474,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hu Haifeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman on 15 May 2017, 3 August 2017 and
2 March 2018, respectively)

Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chief Financial Officer)

(appointed as Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Director on 27 October 2017 and
2 March 2018, respectively)

Mr. Zhong Guoxing (appointed as Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer on 15 May 2017 and
appointed as Chairman on 30 June 2017,
ceased to be Chief Executive Officer on
3 August 2017 and resigned as Chairman and
Executive Director on 2 March 2018)

Mr. Wang Zhonghe (resigned as Vice-chairman and
Executive Director on 30 November 2017)

Mr. Ren Haisheng (resigned as Executive Director
on 3 August 2017)

Mr. Zhang Honghai (resigned as Chairman and
Executive Director on 30 June 2017)

Mr. Cheung Ming (resigned as Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director on 15 May 2017)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Zheng Gang (appointed on 28 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David

Dr. Liu Yongping (appointed on 5 June 2018)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
code provisions A.4.3 of the CG Code, Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, Mr.
Chan Kwong Fat, George and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 86 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Sin Lik Man, Mr. Zheng Gang and Dr. Liu Yongping will hold
office until the following AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’ emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The Company is not aware of any updated information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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As at 31 March 2018
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Approximate

percentage of

the Company's

Number issued

Capacity and Number of of share Total share capital

Name of directors nature of interests shares held options held interests (Note)

EEDRERT

R 2

BrEok

4B BRRERLE FiRA#E FisBERERE BmaE (Hrét)

Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George Beneficial owner 10,000,000 = 10,000,000 0.05%
REZEE BEREBA

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick Beneficial owner 7,000,000 - 7,000,000 0.03%
BEBELE ERBEA

Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David Beneficial owner 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.04%
REREE ERBAA

Note:  The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2018, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests, which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012 for
the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company adopted on
6 January 2003 was terminated on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. As at 31 March 2018, no share options were
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.

EERBESTECRERBAZHEER
=

REE-Z—-N\F=ZF=+—HIFE HEEE
FHESAZERHEA (TER ETHRA) R
5 B ok R B B AN 6R B B S AR 5 R B A AR R
FrEBRHRARERIMNEMFSER  MER
B ETRAIEL -

BRESE

ARARAR_E——FNA-++tBHETZARQF
BREBEFAS ERMNEIR A BRETE ([0ERE
el BMRRAAERSEERERER WKRFA
ARIEER T =F— A XB RN HERE

A&l

REE-Z—N\F=ZF=+—HIFE FEER
RERTEIBE T 2 BRERET 17 s k-
MN-ZE—N\EZR=+—08 BREFEE e
B ARAT 0 2 B AR o

EERERODEET 2EF

BEXTEENERN HERDREEE 2R R
wE | N [BRER S MEFTIREESN RAFE
WAEAATE - AN R B SR B A R BEERT (F
AR BEEEAEBEARFREMEMEA
Bz ROIEREMENNG  TEEFRES
ZHRBEARKFFLARRBAARES  HNF
MATEAE R LSRR -

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A T



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE

SFO

As at 31 March 2018, the following interests of 5% or more

of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in

the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company REQNTRGBZHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held the Company’s

Capacity and as at 31 March issued share capital

Name of shareholder nature of interest 2018 (Note 4)

R=Z-N\F R VNG|

=A=+-H ERTREZ

BEEE BB BORERME FsROEAE BRBEDE (Hit4)

Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
HE PR sEE 2 s 23

Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
ERBBA (Hret1)

Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
FEIRRAT PR sEE 2 s (H132)

Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
ERBBA (H15t2)

China Huarong Asset Management Person having a security interest in shares 1,971,000,000 (Note 3) 9.35%

Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong Asset

Management”)
FEEREEEERONERAT

([HFEEREEER])

HERNFHERERROAL

(K1323)

Annual Report 2017/18 % %{ 2017/18

33



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO (continued)

Long positions in the shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

2. These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO.

3. Beaverway Limited (“Beaverway”) was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Linewear Assets Limited (“Linewear”); Linewear
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (“Huarong International”), which
in turn was a 51.00% interest subsidiary of Camellia Pacific
Investment Holding Limited (“Camellia”), Camellia was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (“China Huarong International”), which in
turn was a 88.10% interest subsidiary of Huarong Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (ZERFF ¥ B R A 7)) (“Huarong Real Estate (&
&%) "); and Huarong Real Estate (ZE L& %) was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Huarong Asset Management.

Accordingly, each of Beaverway, Linewear, Huarong
International, Camellia, China Huarong International,
Huarong Real Estate (¥ g & ¥ ) and China Huarong
Asset Management is deemed to be interested in these
1,971,000,000 shares under the SFO.

4, The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2018
as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other
relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,
would have to be recorded in the said register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company's Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
of directors and in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 36% and approximately 100% respectively of
the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
79% and approximately 90% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by
the operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and
the Power Company and a system for the management of
environment, air emission, water resources, soil, waste and
energy.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.
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With employees being its cornerstone for success and
key to the development of core competency, the Group
makes every effort to ensure its operation compliant with
laws and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and
suppliers and has ongoing communication with the customers
and suppliers through various channels such as telephone,
electronic mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback
and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the
ordinary shares of the Company is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group's operation
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, subsidised training programme, share
option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2018 had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
before they are duly approved by the Board under the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events undertaken after the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (Bl &= 4% (&8 ) & 5TAI =
S FT AR A 7)) has changed its English name to Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited. Accordingly, the independent auditor’s report is
now signed under the new name.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hu Haifeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEELGRE

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has continued to implement appropriate corporate
governance practices to ensure transparency, accountability
and effective internal control. The Board has adopted the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report for
the year ended 31 March 2018, which contains the Company’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published in the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites no
later than 3 months after the publication of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board’s primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate strategies,
to establish policies and plans, to oversee management of the
Group, to evaluate the performance of the Group, to assess
the achievement of targets set by the Board periodically
and to review and approve annual and interim results and
other significant financial and operational matters under
the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board is
directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
responsibility of day-to-day management and operations of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hu
Haifeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Sin
Lik Man (Chief Financial Officer), one Non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Zheng Gang, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick, Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David and Dr. Liu Yongping.

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and risk management committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual report are
detailed on pages 39 to 56 of this annual report.

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” set out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 20 to 25 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on
the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting issues
affecting the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, thirteen regular Board
meetings and the 2017 Annual General Meeting were held. The
attendance records of each director is set out as follows:

EEgEERBRREAE
BE-T—\F=A=t+-BLEE EFRRS
THEREMRER -+ ERRBEAG 5
#E 2 HEERBIIMT

Number of attendance

i FE R E
2017
Annual General
Board meetings Meeting
—E—t5F
Name of Director EEHE EZEER BRERBFXRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hu Haifeng HEEREE (RZF—FF 10/10 1/1
(appointed on 15 May 2017) AATHAEZE)
Mr. Sin Lik Man HENXEE (RZFE—/F 0/0 -
(appointed on 2 March 2018) ZHZHEZF)
Mr. Zhong Guoxing BEELEE (RZF—FF 10/10 1/1
(appointed on 15 May 2017, AA+HAEZE
resigned on 2 March 2018) R-ZE-NF=ZH=H
BHE)
Mr. Wang Zhonghe FipEEE (RZFE—+F 11/11 1/1
(resigned on 30 November 2017) +—H=+HEFT)
Mr. Ren Haisheng EBAXE (R=ZF—FF 5/6 -
(resigned on 3 August 2017) NA=HEHTF)
Mr. Zhang Honghai RIDBEAE (RZFE—+F 4/4 -
(resigned on 30 June 2017) NA=+HEAE)
Mr. Cheung Ming REALE (RZFE—+4F 2/2 =
(resigned on 15 May 2017) AA+FEHAET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BN I HITES
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PR & % S A 12/13 1/1
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEREE 13/13 1/1
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David RIEFR A 12/13 1/1

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company was held
on 15 September 2017. The forthcoming AGM of the Company
will be held on September 2018 (meeting agenda will be
provided in the Notice of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our
Directors, company secretary and other senior executives of
the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the shareholders. All
Directors treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM held annually.
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AR E A= RITHA BRI AR RSN 2 2B S
HEBRRBFAREG  LEERROEARRE 28
EENEENBFRTHRRBFREG LBEHAA
RABRRERNHKS -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, except for the deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1 during two relatively brief periods described
below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Zhong Guoxing, who was the last chief executive officer of
the Company, took up the position of chairman on 30 June
2017 when his predecessor resigned as chairman effective
from that day and continued to act as the chief executive
officer of the Company until Mr. Hu Haifeng, the deputy chief
executive officer of the Company, was re-designated as chief
executive officer of the Company around one month later
(i.e. on 3 August 2017). Since then, Mr. Hu Haifeng has been
the chief executive officer of the Company. He succeeded Mr.
Zhong Guoxing as the chairman when Mr. Zhong Guoxing
resigned as chairman effective from 2 March 2018. For the rest
of the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and up till now, Mr.
Hu Haifeng has been serving as both the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company.

Although for both the periods 30 June 2017 to 2 August
2017 and 2 March 2018 to 31 March 2018, the positions of
chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference
materials to enable them to familiarise with the Group's
business operations and Board’s policies. The Company is
committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development.
Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

FEEATHRAR (&)

AN RABMABERNRRINEETERE &
ERZBEgZREKRERHMITENREN G
H-BORBEL RPN - AN EEEH
RSEARNFAREENKEHREEXNBAN  BE
MABRERREBYUER -EFRRAR—A
ITHREIERTRAEAZBTERTESTERAR
RERE 2RO RBETE-

FUITESERBIYFYUTES

BEFRTESMBUIFNTEZZRENR T
BA RIFEM—FTHEHANEANEEBNAEL
BRFRERSBEBER+ @A - FAEFERT
EERBYFNTEENARBARA ZAAMA
ARARTRRBFAS LRERTRBERET
YERELBE=FHERTI K-

EEZ ABEBRREBEERRE

METEEREERESIRZ2EER MMEERRAK
SEEBEFRESERR - REBEREZESHE
FEIEXER ARFABIRZFREBEENE
e ARRIFIRRZESRBELTRA  BREE
REBREERT  UWRAEENEBBRNRH
BR BREFAODATZIRSNBE -2BEF
TRBREEXRRNER N WAL EEMNS
BERIE - RN E R E R A e

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥EEEZKRER A T



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, Mr. Chan Kwong Fat,
George and Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 2 March 2018). Mr. Siu Hi
Lam, Alick is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Directors. The attendance records of each member is set outas /& 1B & T a0
follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick mERELE 7/7
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PREZ A& 7/7
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David REFREAE 6/7
Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 2 March 2018) HEgEE (R=ZF—NF=ZA=-HEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Zhong Guoxing (appointed on 15 May 2017, $EER%E (R=ZF—+FAATHHEZ(T - 4/4

resigned on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Cheung Ming (resigned on 15 May 2017)

RZF-NF=H_HE)
RALLE (R-F—+FAA+AHEE)
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EREBRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2018, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick and Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 2 March 2018). Mr.
Chan Kwong Fat, George is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.

The Nomination Committee met eight times during the
year ended 31 March 2018 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assess the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; review
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-election of director. The Nomination Committee also
endorsed the continued independence of Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
and Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George, notwithstanding that both
of them had been serving as Independent Non-executive
Directors for more than 9 years under the Code Provision A.4.1
of the CG Code, and would stand for re-election as directors at
the 2018 AGM. The attendance records of each member is set
out as follows:
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Number of

attendance
Name of member REHH R #
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PREZ A& 8/8
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick mEREE 8/8
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David REFREAE 7/8
Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 2 March 2018) HEREE (R=ZF—NF=ZAZ-HEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Zhong Guoxing (appointed on 15 May 2017, $EEH%E (R=ZF—+FAHAATHHEZ(T - 5/5

resigned on 2 March 2018)
Mr. Cheung Ming (resigned on 15 May 2017)

RZFE—NF=H_HE)
RALLE (R-F—+FAA+AHFHE)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
in September 2013 which set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on
range of diversity perspectives, which would include but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Policy and will from time to time review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2018,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, Mr. Chan
Kwong Fat, George and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick. Mr. Ng Tze Kin,
David is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control
principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also delegated
the corporate governance function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance within
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended
31 March 2018 and the attendance records of each member is
set out as follows:

BEREEE (H)

—N\F=ZA=+—HILFE BEZ éi@
/X@m ERBZHEBREINWT

Number of
attendance
Name of member REHA R #
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David REFREAE 3/3
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PR B 3% S A 3/3
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick mERLE 3/3

The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year:

. reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 and recommended to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the
corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2017 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

. reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

. reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group;

UNTRAFEECEZR GBI TR :

EZEHLNRAEBEEBEE_T - \F=H
=t ALEFEZEBREMB®RE  LEH
BExgTUHbE:

ERNECRERTHAETEERARTALZ
ERARBERERREZHERE

BHLARAKREBE_T—EFNAA=T
BIEAREAZ REBZM B RE X EHE
EE T

BB A A B K T 8
YEAEE L BHBEREMARERE

=

BHARRMBRESE  RREERASE
B P EREE A E 2 B e FE R M

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥EEEZKRER A T



AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

. reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

. engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2018, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2018, the Risk Management Committee
comprises four members, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David, Mr. Chan
Kwong Fat, George, and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick and one Executive
Director, namely Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 3 August 2017).
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David is the Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee.

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of the
risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board on the same. The full
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2018 to identify risk on Group’s operation; to
review and recommend to the Board the interim review reports
on risk management and internal control. The attendance of
each member is set out as follows:

EREEZEES (#)

HE-Z—)\F=ZA=1+—HLFE RBREEZ
BEETTMAEE UWHAEEZLE LA
% BHEREERABELNP BRTRE I
RHAEESIELHBER - SREBZ L BB LR
R

Number of

attendance
Name of member REHA R #
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David REFREAE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George PR B 3% SE A 2/2
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick mEREE 2/2
Mr. Hu Haifeng (appointed on 3 August 2017) B ES4E (R=ZF—+F/NA=HEZ(T) 1/1
Mr. Ren Haisheng (resigned on 3 August 2017) XA XE (R=ZF—+F /A =HEHT) 0/1

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 57 to
62 of this annual report.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable to
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (previously Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited) (“Crowe”), the auditor of the Company:

BBET R BT

BRAARAINEZBEMEARRBE_T—\F
A=t HALFEGAMBRR AT 2R
HRAFHRETEQAZ [BYZBMBE] —
A o

RAFER BENHENARAZBENEEEE
(BR)EMEBHMARAR ((BEEEZE
AT :

HKS$’000
FET

Fees for audit services (Note a) R 2 BB (Kita) 1,133
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) ERBRB 2 BR (Mib) 210
Total #t 1,343
Notes: Kiat -
(a) The audit services provided by Crowe. (a) BRI AR E A EAIRM
(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe. (b) JEZ RIS R B B s E TRt -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions, the Board
has delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee which
include the following:

(a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The
systems, including a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help achieving business objectives,
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use, and maintaining
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The systems
are set up to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement of financial statements or
lost of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group'’s
objectives.

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitored the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It has evaluated and determined the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group's
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.

| B R I X R R 4

EXenHEAR R RREERAMEZRS
ZEE NREAEEZEERBRRER R %
EER (REATHERIEBER) DRBGEER
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BB -RIRGDHRAE (EIFBEH)REN I
MBBERGFEERRERAKEERL  ARERE
(MIFBR) BERRRY L REERAEERBF
e

EHNRREESARERBHREIER L AIHF
BEREWMER - EFERHEEERARERE AR
EERG - HO A RETE RED KA B RBED
REAENEAREEREE BEFEECHAKEN
EREBRABEZERGHBRILETTFER
Bl - FEEHBERASEES ABBXLYE
ERBE T ENER 8 TEERKR HIIRE
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AEBEARGER  FERERRERRRNEFT)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can get reach of the
sensitive and confidential inside information.

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group's risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2018
in accordance with the requirements under code provision C.2
of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review agreed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ho Yan Julian (“Mr. Leung”) was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 27 October 2017.
The biographical details of Mr. Leung are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 25 of this annual report. Mr. Leung
has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 March 2018. Ms. Hui Yee Ling was the company
secretary of the Company from 8 October 2008 to 10 October
2017, prior to the appointment of Mr. Leung.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBWRE

RERER (%)
BRRRBRRASELREBRNER

REARE REZZRAHRFE LR E2EERRE
(REZAHBEENFBLEAB ARG LERESE)
BERER_ Oz WERNBEBRR HAPR
—BERR AERERARF:

(a) AAERKBRTERRBFASRBENAR
AIRRBELBEE  BAOEEAAIGREZRE

LEABREREIREARESR

(b) MAEREDREMERASBENARAR
REH-—ODFHEITZR-TFHRLE
AR EBEEMNERIR2RERAMTMRED
EH AR LBERENES-

MBREERBHRBERBE  ZmLEVAEEKR
GERTAHITORANELHXERQE  MFK
EBEMEMER ZARENAERSRTAY
AT DR — {8 2 Bk sz

BRREBAZRSEFIQNTEEZRF

RBEARAZARMAMAEsSGF BIFEEEHEES
B BABRRARRBRERRE LREZESRIN B
BEMALEEBRARRERMBRAE 258
EE RIBEARERBEARABRRAGLR
GLRROARFBRR (RERBALHRINEE
BE EPRARBRREZATZENER LM
EFARBEALREBRTRESENEBY XEAR
B2 BRBENFRAERAREEZRNHBFE
THRPEWERBERAR MBELZFBNZ
HRKPAREXR ZHPRAITEERTERTEH
BEIBRRREZBEZARG ITEERZR
RREBOTEMALAR

Annual Report 2017/18 % %{ 2017/18

55



56

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3201-09,
32th Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3L #% B0 AH 4R &

A\ Crowe

BEESE (F8) SHAEHABERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

FE REE TSIRET 7R IBIEF09E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BEP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (formerly known
as BEP International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to
191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of trade and bills receivables

Refer to notes 2(i)(i), 2(k) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

ARETEE
BAREAFESRERMANEXZHE  RAH A
FAMBRRNETRAEENTR ELFEHEE
ERPEABREAVBRRAMDASRBET
REMN - ZHTEHELETREHEFNER

BHRESZREREEME

F2MRAMERERMEE20)) 2k R 18R 5T
®

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEETER EFREAREENGE

Trade receivables amounted to approximately -
HK$96,962,000 and bills receivables amounted to
approximately HK$2,277,019,000 as at 31 March 2018.
RZE-NF=Z=A=+—HB EKEFRENE
96,962,000 T * i f& W 5= 4% Rl 49 72,277,019,0007%

T o

Management make estimates when assessing -
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the required
payments. The estimates were made based on the
ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’ credit-
worthiness, historical write-off experience and current
market conditions.

PRl B A E T A S ) 858 P 75 SR8 M 2 A2 BV 32 R AR
HUR BRI - B E L b5 - BRI DERER
TR EREG - B ANGEE  BEMECE RS
MRAES o

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its -
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because assessing recoverability of debts involves

a significant degree of judgement and estimation by
management.
HMBENESERBFFE WA REEES U
WRWEEM AR R B4 G AT E RS K
EIRE(EHEAIRE B H BT & fhEt e

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

we obtained direct confirmations from a selected
sample of debtors and from banks for the bills
receivables
BMEMENEBEARRBITHE S RIBERERSE
BEREEER

we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the validity
and completeness of sales and bank advices for
the acceptance of bills to gain assurance for the
outstanding trade and bills receivables

BT EINB S R E I A E RIRTT
BRI AR R R e B - i SR U el
W E 5 FIEA R ZERGRE

we assessed the management’s bases and
assumptions employed in making estimates on the
recoverability of the receivable balances and the
extent of impairment allowance required
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I BB R &

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2018

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEERR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZ=-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
B it FET FEIT
Revenue U 2% 4(a) 2,392,876 1,872,541
Cost of sales $H & AR (2,089,699) (1,632,909)
Gross profit EX 303,177 239,632
Other income HE g A 5 143,492 5,032
Selling and distribution costs $HE &9 SHAK A (11,191) (11,339)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (125,892) (88,994)
Other operating expenses H A= F 2 - (342)
Profit from operations R 5 A 309,586 143,989
Finance costs A& KA 6(a) (22,709) (50,989)
Profit before taxation B #% Al v F 6 286,877 93,000
Income tax P 7(a) (52,901) (27,752)
Profit for the year A %A 233,976 65,248
Attributable to: THALHEMR:
Owners of the Company ARRHEE A 233,638 66,348
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 338 (1,100)
Profit for the year A E A 233,976 65,248
HK cent HK cent
Earnings per share BREF 11
Basic R 1.108 0.318
Diluted BE 1.108 0.315

The notes on pages 71 to 191 form part of these financial F71BEZF191B 2 WFAZETEHmEK 2 — &6

AT

statements. 7]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEmkEMEZE K ER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year A F A 233,976 65,248
Other comprehensive income/ REEzHMEEKZE
(expenses) for the year (Bx)
Item that may be reclassified REEATEETHIES
subsequently to profit or loss: B HE
Exchange differences arising BREWBABMBRREEZ
on translation of financial EHZEZ5
statements of subsidiaries 69,003 (30,616)
Other comprehensive income/ ANEZHMEAE WSS (FX)
(expenses) for the year (MBREFB(ZE—CF:F))
(net of nil tax (2017: nil)) 69,003 (30,616)
Total comprehensive income AEELHKSAE
for the year 302,979 34,632
Attributable to: THIA LA :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZZ =N 303,190 35,434
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR = (211) (802)
302,979 34,632

The notes on pages 71 to 191 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRAR

At31 March 2018 R-—ZE—N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Notes HKSs’000 HKS'000
B it FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 13 258,402 256,866
Prepaid land lease payments TE -+ 3 7 &R IE 14 3,693 3,412
Goodwill [EES 15 - =
Other intangible asset HihEmEEE 16 - -
Deferred tax assets BT IR & B 24(b) 49 49
Rental deposit HeZe 19 2,013 697
264,157 261,024
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 17 49,495 52,500
Trade and bills receivables JEW & 5 R IE R FE IR 18 2,373,981 1,491,495
Prepayments, deposits and BARE ek
other receivables H fth & Wk IE 19 548,846 36,037
Prepaid land lease payments T £ &R IE 14 77 69
Tax recoverable a] g B 7 18 24(a) 462 442
Restricted bank deposits SR HISRITIF R 20(b) - 7,547
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEFEY 20(a) 212,545 15,165
3,185,406 1,603,255
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ER B S HIERER 21 1,245,453 947,410
Accruals, deposits and EFER ek
other payables H A fE (IR 22 636,382 113,416
Bank advances for discounted bills RITAIER RIRB K 23 851,210 414,080
Tax payable i ANE ] 24(a) 42,273 18,107
2,775,318 1,493,013
Non-current liabilities FREBBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 24(b) 66 66
Net assets EEFE 674,179 371,200
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EERBIKAR

At 31 March 2018 R=—ZE— N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
Notes HKs’000 HKS'000
s FHET FET

Equity =

Equity attributable to owners RNATHEE ANELER
of the Company

Share capital f& 7 25(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves & 678,226 375,036
682,443 379,253
Non-controlling interests IR ER (8,264) (8,053)
Total equity e 674,179 371,200

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 June 2018.

Mr. Hu Haifeng
g 4
Director

BF

The notes on pages 71 to 191 form part of these financial
statements.

Mr. Sin Lik Man
BHEE
Director

EF

RZZE-NERA_ThBELESSHERKE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEESEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_T— N\F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEANES
Share Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory option Contributed Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve surplus reserve profits Total interests Total equity
BRE FER

A ROEE AHEE RARE LEER R RARK EARE REEA E R RifE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TEr TEn  TEn  FTEr  TEx  TEr  FExr  TEx  FEx  TEx  TEn  TER

At 1 April 2016 RZF-A¥mA-H 4m 18,069 (1522) 8173 - 6,252 94218 1329 216418 347,048 (723 339816
Profit/(loss) for the year FhEFl/ (E8) - - - - - - - - 66,348 66,348 (1,100) 65248
Exchange differences arising on translation 28 B2 781 K%

of financial statements of subsidiaries EECEAER - - - - - - - (30914) - (30914 298 (30616)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ FR2E (FX)/

income for the year Darat - - - - - - - (30914 66348 35,434 (802) 34632

Shares issued under share option scheme 1715 T8 Bt 81 %77

(note 25(b)(}) 2I&{3 (Hiit2smi) 106 23901 - - - (6,252) - - - s -1
Release the capital reserve upon disposal ~ (HE B R4

of subsidiaries BAGEER B - - (322) - - B = 30 = = =
Transfer from retained profits to BREGNERZE

statutory reserves TR - - - - 4,040 - - - (4040) - - -
Transfer from contributed surplus to BEARRERZRBER

retained profits (Note 25(c)(vj)) (Hisz25()vi) - - - - - - (62259 - 62,258 B - -
Dividend declared and paid in respectof ~ StBAFEERLEMEE

the previous year (note 10(b)) (Hiit1om) - - - - - - - - (20984 (0984) - (0984)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2 F 3£ /2l fE &R 5. - - - - - - - - - - (18) (18)
Disposal of interests in non-wholly owned 132 A KB AliER

subsidiaries (note 28) (Hii#28) - - - - - - - = = = (U} (U}
At 31 March 2017 R=F—+t5=A=1-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 4,040 - 31,960 (29,585) 320322 379,253 (8,053) 371,200
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+t5mA—-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 4,040 - 31,960 (29,585) 320,322 379,253 (8,053) 371,200
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - 233638 233,638 338 233976
Exchange differences arising on translation 8 Hi 8 2 78 K%

of financial statements of subsidiaries EEZEXER - - - - - - - 69,552 - 69,552 (549) 69,003
Total comprehensive income/ FR2ENE/

(expenses) for the year (A% 88 - - - - - - - 69552 233638 303,190 (211) 302,979
Transfer from retained profits RREENEES

to statutory reserves yid-1] - - - - 7,027 - - - (7,027) - - -
Utilisation of reserve BAGRE - - - - (235) - - - 235 - - -
At 31 March 2018 R=F-\5=A=t-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 10,832 - 31,960 39,967 547,168 682,443 (8,264) 674,179

The notes on pages 71 to 191 form part of these financial F71BEZF191B 2 WFAZETEHmEK 2 — &6
statements. %) @
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
Bt it FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation B A% Al i A 286,877 93,000
Adjustments for: AT FIBEL 2
Finance costs B KA 6(a) 22,709 50,989
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BRER&E
plant and equipment ZIEBEFE 6(c) 15 2
Written off of property, Y3 - B KRR i 8
plant and equipment 6(c) 2,798 255
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ST B ARz s 5 - (1)
Gain on disposal of prepaid HEBEMN LB ERE
land lease payments 2 Wz 5 - (23)
Amortisation of prepaid TE 1 4 78 & SR IE 8
land lease payments 6(c) 73 615
Depreciation for property, Y% BB k&G
plant and equipment ZIE 6(c) 32,631 18,506
Impairment allowance for H A fE IR IE 2
other receivables B 6(c) - 290
Impairment loss for property, Y- BB MREEZ
plant and equipment REEE 6(c) - 52
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative METMIAZARE
financial instruments EiE (Wa) 6(c) 65,467 (2,302)
Interest income B WA 5 (352) (1,925)
Unrealised foreign exchange REBE A
(gain)/loss (Wz=) B#E (139,279) 38,157
(15,938) 104,595
270,939 197,595
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESRY
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRD,/ (Em) 8,076 (14,386)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and EWE SGHERERZ
bills receivables (3m) (689,815) 249,349
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BANRIE ZEk
deposits and other receivables H A fE IR RRIE 2
(&), wd (492,852) 36,526
Decrease in restricted bank deposits T TEE) 2 R
on operating activities RITIFERZ B 7,916 1,216,128
Increase/(decrease) in trade and ENESHERERZ
bills payables #n CRd) 289,379 (280,895)
Increase in accruals, deposits and EETER ek
other payables H M < 3R 2 10 423,117 12,492
(454,179) 1,219,214
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FEOWS =ty -
GARERBR. |

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HBE=-T—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
B it FET FET
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED (AR)/ REKEED
FROM OPERATIONS ZHRE (183,240) 1,416,809
Income taxes paid BATEH
Hong Kong BB 24(a) (19,136) (40,454)
PRC Gl 24(a) (10,605) (14,136)
Income taxes recovered — PRC 2B AER—H 24(a) - 848
(29,741) (53,742)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED (AR, REKEESH =
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEREE (212,981) 1,363,067
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETER
Payment for the purchase of property, XNBEME HER
plant and equipment R IR (11,705) (31,291)
Payment for prepaid land lease payments 7 {5t 8 15 4= 30 F & X 78 - (41,506)
Proceeds from sale of prepaid o E TR L & SR8
land lease payments pATIEES /G2 - 40,884
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWME BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment F 5 k18 84 =
Payment of consideration payable for ¢ AF Uit B — Pl B /B8 2 A
acquisition of a subsidiary Z KRB - (153,908)
Interest received =L PS) 48 1,925
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMERQR
net of cash disposed of (HMBRAMEERSE) 28 - 26
NET CASH USED IN ARREEFDH 2R FE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (11,573) (183,870)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHRRE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

—N\E=ZRA=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
Notes HKs’000 HKS'000
Bt FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& EE
Interest paid BARFLE (16,671) (50,989)
Proceeds from bank advances RITERIR B BN Y
for discounted bills FT1S 538 1,421,321 1,503,022
Repayment of bank advances for BRIRITAREBREARK
discounted bills (992,721) (1,541,069)
Proceeds from issuance of BT R Z TS RIE
ordinary shares - 17,755
Repayment of bank loan BEBITER - (1,150,605)
Proceeds from other loan B ERZFSHIE - 40,255
Repayment of other loan E%&ﬁfﬂlgm - (40,255)
Dividends paid to owners of ENAREHER ARE
the Company 10 - (20,984)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EENEINEPNGIE ST
interests in subsidiary i 2 - (18)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) R B, (FAR)BETE 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REeFHE 411,929 (1,242,888)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBESEEYE M
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Om2) 388 187,375 (63,691)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZEERERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 15,165 80,326
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERRBZE
RATES CHANGES 10,005 (1,470)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEERESESEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 20(a) 212,545 15,165

The notes on pages 71 to 191 form part of these financial

statements.

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M8 R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZ=-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. The Company'’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 3201-09, 32/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting on 15 September 2017, the
name of the Company has been changed from “BEP
International Holdings Limited” to “New Provenance
Everlasting Holdings Limited” with effect from 15
September 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

—REHR

AABIRBREZMKIAEREBERA
7] H R ) 7 Bt A2 BT _E TR o AN A B S A i
FE &AL Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda’ M4 A 7l 2 &%
FTELENM AR BT B EESRINE
AR 032183201-09F °

RN -F—LENATHABRTZIRE
BEAR LRB HARRRE EAR2E
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BAF
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I ZEBHBHENUBHRRME32

TEEFHEE
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HREERTERE L EMBHREIN
HEBRBBERSMER AR ([H
RFT])#ESH EmAR ([ EmRA)
ZHERAEBRRE AEBETRMZ
ERGHBRBEER T

Annual Report 2017/18 4 %f 2017/18

71



72

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company'’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value as
explained in note 2(e).

2.

TESHEE (H)

(a)

(b)

aRBY (&)

BRI AEERME THEI R
RIETEBUHERERED  ZEBE
MHREEIRAEEAS LM
BRE A IR R R - Mt iE3LR
HERER L E ] RIS £
ez et RREH 2 ER A
1A ML 2 B 1 R 3k P BT R BR B AT K2 58
TestMEAEEREERR -

MBHR2EREE

HE—_Z—-NE=A=t+—H8I1t%
BRAVBRERBEARRRE
WEBAR (HE[AEE]) -

AEEBETEERZVBERRAE
REBNDRAZERKEEMERZ
IBRERRCE ([TheEEk])
AR MEFMBRENETER K
BREEN FRSBEHREER
BEZTUB - BLTR/EARRZY
RERRAEEZZ2HE%-

MBmRDVIBELKAZERFE
EERE - R T2e)fEETES
BTADNEREZRARERZT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'MEN- S ,
HAMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income or expenses of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)),
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant CGU, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal (or any of the CGU within group
of CGUs in which the Group monitors goodwill).

2.

TESHEE (H)

(d)

[k
WEXBMELNEEDRKER
% B R AR = REHREREE (40
B

BRERAENS BEDNOEEEM
A& BF 2 15 R VE R 2 1 & (B 3R
SEAEM ([REELEM]) (X
BHRSELEM)  HiERARE
B2 BHEREETEENREK
FETRREEN R

BORRENRSELEM (R
SELBEUVAE) @FFERENR
WRA PR A B BN AT RERE
TR SRR - IR K — 51
RMETZKBRELZHEMmMS
BORREBZRSELEM (R
SEAEVA) RZREHREER
ZAERERIH - MRS ELEMN
A EREEREREE AIE K
DEREBREANRD DB T & B
EER B REE  ARZELA
REFREMLARTEENKREES
EEHEMEE -BENEAIRERS
BEERRESETHER - BEZCHE
RREBSETERNERAMED -

REEFHRSELENR GEF
E B R B R 2 R AT
ABENEERE (IAREEE
BENREELEMVARANER
REeEEBN) -

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE "M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses and estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:
Plant, machinery and  5%-33%
equipment
Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%
Office equipment 20%-33%
Computer equipment  20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%
Over the shorter of
the remaining term
of the lease and the

Leasehold
improvements

estimated useful life
of 4 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment losses.
Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are reclassified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

2.

—N\F=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (continued)

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT. —

HAMIBBRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Leasehold land and building for own
use

When the Group makes payments for a
property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of
each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump sum upfront
payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Leasehold land and building for own

use (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold
land is under finance lease.

(i) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
and
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

%Aﬂ#i‘%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE_—_ZT— \F=H= Jr*EUJ:iJE‘

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

- significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and other
financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the
present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that
is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is
made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on
historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A 7

—N\F=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade and
bills receivables and other receivables
included within prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade and bills
receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid land lease payments;

- other intangible asset;

= goodwill;

— deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in
the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated. In

addition, for goodwill, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether

or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of
an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent
of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently
(that is, a CGU).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'MEN- ,
HAMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the CGU to
which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of the CGU are allocated
first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro-rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an
asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment
losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment

losses (continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payables, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(q)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'MEN- S ,
HAMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(o) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits and

(ii)

contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options
will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity-settled share-based payments
(continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in
the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium
account or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. =
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognsied is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

—N\F=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(1)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts
that require the issuer (that is, the
guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group are initially measured at
their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at the higher
of:

. the amount of the obligation
under the contract, as
determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

. the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee
period.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN S

HAMIBBRME" |

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q)

(r)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts and returns.

(i) Sale of utilities

Revenue is recognised when utilities are
generated and transmitted.

(iii) Service income

Service income are recognised when
the related services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT o . ’
GOMBREME. |

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over
the Group;
(b) has significant influence over

the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEESFBEK(E)

(continued)
(u) Related parties (continued) (u) BEAL (&)
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any (ii) i 75 & T BRI - Bl 5z
of the following conditions applies: ERREAEEGRE
(a) The entity and the Group are (a) ZEREANEEEBR

(e)

members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

2.

—N\F=H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)
(ii) (continued)
(f) The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(h) The entity or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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2.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

—N\F=H=

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 20(c).
Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 20(c), the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide guidance on how an entity
determines, in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes, whether to recognise a deferred tax asset in
relation to unrealised losses of a debt instrument that
is measured at fair value under certain specific facts
and circumstances, such as it is probable that all the
contractual cash flows of the debt instrument will be
collected and any gains/losses on the debt instrument
are taxable (deductible only when realized).

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 12
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures included in the annual improvements
are not yet mandatorily effective and they have not
been early applied by the Group.

HKFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide
summarised financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are
classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify that
except for summarised financial information, all other
disclosure requirements under HKFRS 12 are applicable.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WaERISE®RE
(a) Revenue (a) W 22
Revenue represents the sales value of goods WanEHETERPEMI AAEMD
and utilities supplied and services rendered RIEHBRB 2HEEE - RERNSE
to customers. The amount of each significant Rz EERKESENAT
category of revenue recognised during the year
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Sourcing and sale of metal KEREESBEED R
minerals and related HETERE
industrial materials 2,114,606 1,619,896
Production and sale of FEREEIXAED
industrial products 111,338 133,073
Production and sale of utilities FERHEARE® 166,932 119,343
Others H A - 229
2,392,876 1,872,541

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments.

(b)

oE®RE

REBZEOBEREER  MHRA
BEBENAX R E RSB K
REFEMAARETHRAR (X
BLEREN) AREREHNZ TR
—EAKEE 2% TIEET 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials;

(ii) Production and sale of industrial
products;

(iii) Production and sale of utilities; and
(iv) Others

Others segment represents business activities
and operating segments not separately
reported, including provision of logistics
services and sale of electrical and electronic
consumer products. During the year ended 31
March 2017, the operation of sale of electrical
and electronic consumer products segment was
disposed.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
goodwill, other intangible asset, inventories,
trade and bills receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, tax recoverable,
deferred tax assets and restricted bank deposits
of each segment. Segment liabilities include
trade and bills payables, accruals, deposits and
other payables, bank advances for discounted
bills, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities of
each segment.

4. WHEERSEHRSE (&)

(b)

o EHRE (&)
(i) RERIHECBEY X8
TERK:

(i) AEMEETXAER:

(iii) SENBEEARER &
(iv) E
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REE - B LM ERIE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the chief executive
officer is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, depreciation, amortisation
of prepaid land lease payments, impairment
of property, plant and equipment and other
receivables, finance costs, income tax expense
and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to price
charged to external parties for similar orders.

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 2.
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WERSEHRS (F)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) PHERE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities SR EERBE (E)
(continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable HE_Z-\FE_ZE—tF=H
segments as provided to the Group's chief =+—BLEFE RBETAEET
executive officer for the purposes of resources BABEZEEIRD B R D EERR
allocation and assessment of segment ZASEAEHRS B2 ERAT
performance for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 are set out below:
2018
—E-N\F
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals  Production
andrelated andsale of Production
industrial industrial  and sale of
materials products utilities Others Total
g
R#E £E
SEEY R#HE £E
&l I%A8 R#EE
TEREH Em ARE®m Htt @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment REETSE 6
revenue 2,114,606 111,338 166,932 - 2,392,876
Reportable segment profit 7] 2 {7 48 ) 7 258,183 20,584 13,219 - 291,986
Depreciation for property, ¥1% * Fi/5 &%
plant and equipment ZHE - (9,235) (22,344) (2) (31,581)
Amortisation of prepaid ~ FA{F LI E
land lease payments FIBH - (73) - - (73)
Finance costs BEKA (22,709) - - - (22,709)
Income tax expense Fife B % (45,949) (4,063) (2,889) - (52,901)
Reportable segment assets 7] £ {7 48 & & 2,868,257 135,001 224,523 1,260 3,229,041
Additions to non-current  F AR E JETR B
segment assets PEAE
during the year - 3,763 2,325 - 6,088
Reportable segment AZR/HEERE
liabilities (2,649,312) (26,881) (87,823) (4,553) (2,768,569)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WHEKRTERE (HF)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) PHEmE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities SR EERBE (#)
(continued)
2017
—T—+F
Sourcing
and sale
of metal
minerals  Production
and related  and sale of  Production
industrial industrial ~ and sale of
materials products utilities Others Total
R
RIHE
EEEYD EE KE
K AR RHE RHE
I%R¥ IXBEm RAREM it Bt
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment
revenue 1,619,896 133,073 119,343 229 1,872,541
Reportable segment A2RSBEEFN
profit/(loss) 153,109 34,066 42,749 (1,631) 228,293
Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment - (8,908) (9,227) (2) (18,137)
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments - (71) (544) = (615)
Impairment of:
- property, plant and
equipment - = = (52) (52)
- other receivables —H A UK IE - - - (290) (290)
Finance costs (50,114) - (875) - (50,989)
Income tax expense (11,680) (8,074) (8,170) (4) (27,928)
Reportable segment assets Gl 1,460,545 87,239 297,615 960 1,846,359
Additions to non-current  F AR E FER B
segment assets
during the year - 1,982 70,742 - 72,724
Reportable segment AZRAHAE
liabilities (1,401,924) (30,655) (47,931) (4,054) (1,484,564)

There are no inter-segment sales during the

years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

BE_ZT—N\FEK_FT—+&F=8
=+—BIFE TESFEHEEE-
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

4. WHEERSEHRSE (&)

(b)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

o EHRE (&)

GAMBREME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE-T—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

DR N BE AR

profit, assets, liabilities and other items: REMIER 2 88k
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Revenue &
Total reportable segment revenue 7] £ ¥ 5 58 Ui 25 4458 2,392,876 1,872,541
Elimination of inter-segment I 8H  HA E Weas
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue iR E W 2,392,876 1,872,541
Profit Y Al
Total reportable segment profit REREBEIINREFEZ
derived from the Group’s external  R] 2 ¥} % 8 )@ FI| 48 58
customers 291,986 228,293
Other income H g A 143,492 5,032
Depreciation of reportable segment A &1 & 5 485 I B R 5H A
not included in measurement of ZAERDEE
segment profit (2) (2)
Amortisation of prepaid land TE T 4 0 78 & SR IE 8
lease payments (73) (615)
Impairment loss for property, M HE REE
plant and equipment HEEE - (52)
Impairment allowance for H M 8 W IE 2 R (B 1
other receivables - (290)
Finance costs B AR (22,709) (50,989)
Fair value loss on derivative MESMIAZ
financial instruments NAEERE (65,467) =
Unallocated head office and ROBBIHER R
corporate expenses PERAT
- Depreciation for property, plant ~ — #7125 &
and equipment RENE (1,050) (369)
- Staff costs (including directors’ —8TITHRA
emoluments) (BRESHM) (39,256) (33,095)
— Net foreign exchange loss —[E & B8 F 5 - (41,588)
- Others —HAh (20,044) (13,325)
Consolidated profit before taxation 434 Bx & A1 i3 7 286,877 93,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

—N\E=ZRA=+—HLFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. DEBE (&)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) i) ﬁ%’l*’: (#&)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, EHH B f-EEBE
profit, assets, liabilities and other items: &EW,E BZHER: (&)
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\E = — 4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Assets EE
Total reportable segment assets AEHNBEERS 3,229,041 1,846,359
Elimination of inter-segment $J85 5 $8 ) pE R IE
receivable - -
3,229,041 1,846,359
Unallocated head office and RORBIHEE
corporate assets TEEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekBReEED 212,545 15,165
- Others —H A 7,977 2,755
Consolidated total assets REBAEHRTE 3,449,563 1,864,279
Liabilities afE
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 2D E 8 FE4R %E 2,768,569 1,484,564
Elimination of inter-segment payable ¥f 9 48 5 & {<f 0 7 - -
2,768,569 1,484,564
Unallocated head office and ROBLBIHERE R
corporate liabilities TEEE
- Others —HAb 6,815 8,515
Consolidated total liabilities e aBReE 2,775,384 1,493,079
Other items HimH
Depreciation for property, M HE R
plant and equipment Z?ﬁg
Reportable segment total SRR b 31,581 18,137
Unallocated head office and ﬂi D ECAE I B K
corporate total EETE 1,050 369
Consolidated total iR R 32,631 18,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
FEMBRRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WHERDERE (E)

(continued)

FEEE ()
2 #5482

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)

aABEBE

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

profit, assets,
(continued)

liabilities and other items:

&EMIQEZ“TEE: (%&)

2018 2017
—E-N\E = — 4
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Income tax expense/(income) 715 %}':é X (kA)
Reportable segment total EWDHEETE 52,901 27,928
Unallocated head office and ?fi A AR 48 3 R K
corporate total XA - (176)
Consolidated total ARE KR 52,901 27,752
Additions to non-current segment  ERREER B DB EE
assets during the year
Reportable segment total 2R ERE 6,088 72,724
Unallocated head office and ﬂi ﬁ%‘%%$)§i&
corporate total R 6,933 73
Consolidated total e R 13,021 72,797
Revenue from major products and services FEEDGREZ W

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

AT RAKERE EREmNMRS

revenue from its major products and services: ol vt
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET

Metal minerals and related L BEY R

industrial materials A L% R 2,114,606 1,619,896
Industrial products TXREm 111,338 133,073
Utilities ~NHE® 166,932 119,343
Others H A - 229
2,392,876 1,872,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(continued)

B

it

)

pil

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
goodwill, other intangible asset and non-
current rental deposit. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the products were delivered or the
services were provided. The geographical
locations of property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments and non-current
rental deposit is based on the physical location
of the assets under consideration. In the case of
goodwill and other intangible asset, it is based
on the location of the operation to which they
are allocated.

o EHRE (K)
iz 77 R

TRHIIOAEERAINATEZ
W R)VAEBEY ¥ BB R&R
B AN AERE mE -
EBREAENMERDES LS IRMIE
NEBEDZAM B ZHEMAE
TR E RS ERS 2B &
Do W B KR BT LA
EFBENARERB SRS 2R
MEDNREMEEEEZERMNE
Eln -pEEREMEREEMS
BRI R SRS 2 (L XA

LEED -

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REINARE Z W EMENE B
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\NFE —ZT—+F ZEBE-NF —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong &5
(place of domicile) (G 2 25 ) - - 6,803 1,296
PRC except =
Hong Kong (BEEBRIN) 2,392,876 1,872,541 257,305 259,679
2,392,876 1,872,541 264,108 260,975
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

ko ERE (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) PHERE (&)
Information about major customers B+ ZERFZ AWM
Revenue from customers contributing 10% EAREE A ZE10% A E 2 &P
or more of the total sales of the Group are as W
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Customer A (note (i) EEA(KEG) 832,058 N/A
3 A
Customer B (note (ii) BB (Kt i i) 854,646 580,091
Customer C (note (iii) BB C (K ai)) 706,104 1,118,492
Notes: Kz -
(i) Revenue from the above customer arose from (i) BHE_Z—N\FE=ZA=1+—H1

the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: the
corresponding revenue did not contribute
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
during the year).

(ii) Revenue from the above customer arose
from the businesses of production and sale
of industrial products, production and sale
of utilities and sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

(iii) Revenue from the above customer arose from
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

(i)

(iii)

FE - FMEREZ WS TR AR
BREESBEBRYREBIER
BER(ZZ2—tF - RNEAHE
2 e 2 7 A A 7 5 B U ek 4B 5B
10%3 A £) °

BHE-T - N\FRZZT—tF=
A=+—BLFE LEFZ
W hREEERFHETEAE
moEEREEAAERURE
BRiHEcBREMRABIER
B o

BHE-ZT - N\FRZZT—tF=
A=+—BUHFE LiEFZ
KTk ERERIHE S BED
MBI ERRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

5. OTHER INCOME 5. HflA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Interest income on bank deposits |ITFERZF B WA 48 1,635
Interest income on loan receivable FEWER 2 F B WA 304 290
Total interest income on financial assets WL AR B AEBRZ
not at fair value through profit or loss CREEZMNBWA LTS 352 1,925
Sundry income I A 214 761
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease HETEMN LA EREZ
payments Wz - 23
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 28) &S E A 7 2 Wz
(Hiit28) - 21
Net foreign exchange gain b H a5 RE 142,926 =
Fair value gain on derivative financial METMIAZ
instruments AR ERE
- forward foreign exchange contracts —RHIINES A - 2,302
143,492 5,032
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. PBRBIATER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BB AR A B kR (BEA) THIEIE
(crediting) the followings:
(a) Finance costs (a) & R A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loan and overdrafts #5175 3 & & X2 Fl 8 - 29,503
Interest on other loan HMERFE - 876
Bills discount charges SRR E A 22,709 20,610
Total interest expense on financial 7 3EIR A A EEH AIB 2
liabilities not at fair value through Z £ @ EE 2
profit or loss MERZ BT 22,709 50,989
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. BRBE

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-Z— \F=A=+—HIEFE

(crediting) the followings: (continued)

(b)

(c)

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

(%)

(b)

Al A ()

BHA MR (GFA) TEIRIE:

BEIRA (BEESHMH)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥+ T & & E fh & F 63,477 50,535
Contributions to defined TE BB RUR IRET 8 2 3R
contribution retirement plans 5,726 4,709
69,203 55,244
Other items (c) HfhE |
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—tF
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories # TFE A 2,089,699 1,631,074
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B & 1,133 914
Amortisation of prepaid land S
lease payments RIEHE G 73 615
Depreciation for property, VI HE R
plant and equipment ZITE 32,631 18,506
Operating lease charges: KEHEER:
minimum lease payments =IEBERRK 16,409 14,687
Net loss on disposal of property, LEME  BE Mi&E
plant and equipment ) i bk 15 2
Written off of property, Y BB k& B
plant and equipment 2 W sE 2,798 255
Impairment allowance for H fib & W IR
other receivables* B - 290
Impairment loss for property, VI HE R
plant and equipment* ZREEE* - 52
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss PEN (Wz) /Fi8)FaE (142,926) 41,588
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative ~ $TA& @ T A2
financial instruments — forward ARE/BE (W)
foreign exchange contracts —RHIINES A 65,467 (2,302)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. BREBIAIER (&)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ B B AT A B A0k (BEA) T3 &8 :
(crediting) the followings: (continued) (&)
(c) Other items (continued) (c) HiEH (&)
& Cost of inventories included HK$69,277,000 9 FERABREEE—T—\FR
(2017: HK$47,250,000) relating to staff costs, —T—+F=A=+—HLEFE
depreciation and operating lease charges BHEIRA MERKEHE
for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 & 369,277,000 70 (=& —+
which amounts were also included in the F 147,250,000/ 70) B B FHIA
respective total amounts disclosed separately INE & 2 B RIET A D BT
in notes 6(b) and 6(c) for each of these types #E6(b) R 6(c)FT I & 2 & A M58
of expenses. Ao
> These items are included in “other operating @ WEHBEBFAGLEERRZ
expenses” on the face of the consolidated [EM&EREZ ] Fe
statement of profit or loss.
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HEBEBERZEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) GEBEERZAERIE:
profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Current tax BVHARH 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note (i)) —BBFER (M 7a6)) 45,949 11,378
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —F BN EFFEH
(note (ii) (TEEMRFHR)
(B a2 (i) ) 6,952 16,585
52,901 27,963
Over-provision in respect of BAFEBERE
prior years
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBENED - (218)
Deferred tax IEEF IR
- Origination and reversal of — TR ER 2 EAREMD
temporary differences (H17E24b)0G))
(note 24(b)(i)) - 7
Total #Et 52,901 27,752
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - = )\¢ =

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (continued)

Notes:

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of
estimated assessable profits for the year.

(ii) PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at
25% (2017: 25%).

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or
10% and withheld by PRC entities.

(iii) The Group is not subject to any taxation
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa,
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

7.

REBERZAEHR (&)

(a)

RERBRZAERE: (F)

friE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

- N\FBBNEHEET
BBEARFE 2 (et ERBRF IR
16.5% (—ZZF —+F :16.5% ) 1
HEtE -

AR EIH B A RIZEIR R B ¥ATS
250 MFBIE(Z T — £ F:
25% ) ©

RIBF B RBARE BB S
T B 2 38 X BF 120085155 © A1
BHEERAINEREEDIRE
R-ZZZTN\EFE—HF—HATHRERZ
S K A B R AR FB OB o T A
Z BB FTE SRR DR ZRE
BIZB125%8%10% 2 Bt R AN %
RS i EM B AR TEH -

FEERNBE—ZT - \FE_F
—tifﬂfﬂ- BIEFEHEA
HERE EEZ RAERER
RBELES 2 RAER BT
A 438 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HEBaRkZFEH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) FHEYHESHEMIRERAMR R
accounting profit at the applicable tax rates: SR IEEER
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation % 353 BT A 286,877 93,000
Notional tax on profit before FRAE AR AN 2 BEFIE
taxation, calculated at the R RRANH AT 15 5 %16.5%
domestic income tax rate of 16.5% &t & (=& —t 4
(2017: 16.5%) 16.5% ) 47,335 15,345
Tax effect of non-deductible DA S 2 T 7 2
expenses 3,343 205
Tax effect of non-taxable income TEF AR 2 Tl 75 5 2 (565) (588)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~ H 1 Fi B G AR FTE L
from other tax jurisdictions MEEZRE 2R 2,322 2,825
Tax effect of utilisation of unused ~ B R BAEFERER 2
tax losses not recognized in REABIEERE 2
prior years MG 2 (68) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZAREARIEEE
not recognised BB E 832 9,557
Over-provision in prior years MEFEREREE - (218)
Tax reduction HIBE R (30) =
Others Hfh (268) 626
Actual tax expense ERBIEZ H 52,901 27,752
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FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEM<£

BIRIEE A D A EHIS383()ERA A (I
BEFRRAN) R E2B T A REE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EMemT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2018
—E-N\§
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R BAKEF
ne RENANGE MERa REEHR Foh
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Hu Haifeng il -3t
(appointed on 15 May 2017) (R=F—*t&
(Chief Executive) TA+RBEZE)
(THEH) - 4,850 700 - 5,550
Mr. Sin Lik Man HENEE
(appointed on 2 March 2018) (R=E-N\%F
“A-HEZA) - 112 44 2 158
Mr. Zhong Guoxing & EE st
(appointed on 15 May 2017 and (RZT—t&F
resigned on 2 March 2018) TATHREZER
RZZE-N\F
=A-B&fE) - 9,665 3,885 - 13,550
Mr. Zhang Honghai SR K&
(resigned on 30 June 2017) (R=ZE—+#&
NA=THER) - 930 - 46 976
Mr. Wang Zhonghe F s
(appointed on 16 May 2016 and (R=ZB—R%E
resigned on 30 November 2017) TR+ ABEZER
RZZ—t4F
T—A=THEE) - 2,840 - 120 2,960
Mr. Cheung Ming REALAE
(resigned on 15 May 2017) (R=B—+45
TA+AAET) - 1,157 - 3 1,160
Mr. Ren Haisheng EEAEE
(resigned on 3 August 2017) (R=F—+tF
NAZBET) - 639 - 7 646
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George REZLE 460 - - - 460
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEBREE 460 - - - 460
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David RERELE 515 - - - 515
1,435 20,193 4,629 178 26,435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8.

EEME (&)

2017
=E—+F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Eo = RRET
e REDAE WERL  REEIHER B
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Zhang Honghai R A&
(resigned on 30 June 2017) (R=ZZE—+F
NA=THER) - 3,720 620 201 4,541
Mr. Wang Zhonghe FHfEE
(appointed on 16 May 2016 and (R=B—RE
resigned on 30 November 2017) AA+AREZER
RZZ—+F
+—RA=1+HER) - 3,727 450 167 4344
Mr. Cheung Ming REALAE
(resigned on 15 May 2017) (R=T—+5
(Chief Executive) RA+HBEE)
(THUE) - 3,120 520 18 3,658
Mr. Ren Haisheng EEAEE
(resigned on 3 August 2017) (R=ZZE—+tF
NAZREHT) - 1,872 312 18 2,202
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Kwong Fat, George REZLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick BEmREAE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ng Tze Kin, David REBEE 240 - - - 240
720 12,439 1,902 404 15,465

No director of the Company has waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

REBEE-_Z—NER-_ZT—+FE=A=+—
ALIEFE AR R 2 E S BEERE T A B
£ - NS B R A (E (A E S SN S ST
A& - (EAESEMAREES INAREE
Iy 2 5% B o Bt B A 1 o
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10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9.
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2017: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in notes 8 and 29. The
aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining two
(2017: one) individuals are as follows:

REFMAL

AEERERRFHALTR =& (=ZF
—tF WE)ERRREZ F2HMEE
AT EE8 I 20 55 - g (=T — L4 -
—Z)ERFMATZHEEENT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREMH =S 2,149 2,200
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 738 284
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  iE K42 Fll 5t 2 4t 7% 144 18
3,031 2,502

The emoluments of the two (2017: one) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

MEBERTMAL(ZTE—tF:—R)2
e BN THIAE R :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N

HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T =
1,500,0007% 7T 1 -

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7 =
2,000,00078 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ L&
2,500,000/ 7T - -

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ L&
3,000,00078 7T - 1

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

DIVIDENDS 10.

a) The Board does not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

REBE-Z-N\FR-ZT—tF=A=+—
RIESE AEEYENEFARSHFMAL
XNRENEAME  EAREMAREE
SN SR E B 2 SRR ok B AR 1E

i B

a EEGTERBRZBE-ZT-N\F
R=ZZ—tHF=A=+—HILEE
Z MRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

10.

11.

DIVIDENDS (continued)

10. KB (&)

b) Dividends paid to owners of the Company b)
attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year are as

RS Z i KRN B B £ — B
FEZENARRHERARSHT
LN

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the BHE-Z—)\F
previous financial year, approved = A =+—H IEFE#LE
and paid during the year ended RENz E—0BRER 2
31 March 2018 of nil per ordinary  FRHIRE B A% LB A
share (2017: HKO.1 cent THW(ZE -5
per ordinary share) ESHiL R ORP X (1T - 20,984
EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BRER
a) Basic earnings per share a) BREARRR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by BRERBHNIDIBRBARRTES A
dividing the profit for the year attributable FERAREE @ AR AR EE B ET
to owners of the Company by the weighted TR INE BT E
average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
Earnings R
Profit for the year attributable RRRHER AFEG
to owners of the Company AF [Z i F
(HKs000) (F%7T) 233,638 66,348
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of B EAT S mAR IR T B
ordinary shares in issue 21,084,072,140 20,836,044,743
Basic earnings per share FREKRAEF
(HK cent per share) (&) 1.108 0.318
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FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 1. 8RER (F&)
b) Diluted earnings per share b) SRESRER
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by SESREE RN REBREREST
adjusting the number of dilutive potential Bl BB EERREE (EH A
ordinary shares under the share option scheme. o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Earnings 7
Profit for the year attributable PAY/NCIE/ RS DN
to owners of the Company REZ 5 A
(HK$°000) (&) 233,638 66,348
Number of shares RO HE
Weighted average number of M EBRELRRAZ
ordinary shares in issue for the BRI T E AR N
purpose of basic earnings per 158
share 21,084,072,140 20,836,044,743
Effect of deemed issue of BEAR R 2 ERET S
shares under the Company’s R ABEEZEITIRGD
share option scheme for nil -
consideration - 230,768,820
Weighted average number of R EBREERAN 2
ordinary shares for the purpose T AR N 39 &
of diluted earnings per share 21,084,072,140 21,066,813,563
Diluted earnings per share st g vl
(HK cent per share) (&) 1.108 0.315

Annual Report 2017/18 4 %f 2017/18 125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

12.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

12.

BERAKEF

AEBEREBERBERREERGFDEERA
REREEMHE 2 EBRHEREES
RG> R EBBRERBESEHRIERES
HE ([REREE)) - RESFE R A
BB EEAEENERBTRNKGS -
RBRESHE BRIMERHAREERN
M 25%E AHTEELHR - B RE
BEXAZHFBELRA®E A1,5008 7T H
&e BRI 58I R AN R o

AEEN2E-BEFRERERERRAK
B E - AEE 2 HEHBERRIERE S
mP BT EE 2 BRE R RKENEE
ZHKB - ZEMBARBRTIERAZIEE
B RERRENE SR ERE BRI
BAE AEBERRABNE ZE—BE

EEHEE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
FEMBR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE_T—\F=A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - BERRE
Plant,
machinery Furniture Construction
and and Office Computer Motor  Leasehold in
equipment fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
BE #E B BRE HENE
R&E R&E #E EMRE RE g ERIR At
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000
&1 AT AT AT &1 AT AT FET
Cost 23
At 1 April 2016 RZZ-7~5mA-A 54,943 842 378 619 1,357 367 171,990 23049
Additions AE 1,881 1 b 44 - - - 1954
Construction expenditure capitalised ~ EEFR X BAER - - - - - - 61,275 61,275
Transfer EE 207,333 - 7630 - - - (214963) -
Written off it (323) - (15) - - - - (338)
Disposal HE - 2 (1) - - - - )
Derecognised on disposal of RBALEHEAR
subsidiaries (note 28) (Hiita8) - (464) (12) (37 - = - (513)
Effect of foreign currency ERER¥E
exchange differences (7359) (19) (169) (5) (58) = (7173) (14,783)
At31March2017and 1 April 2017 RZE—t5=F=+-H
R=Z-t%MA-A 256,475 358 7,839 621 1,299 367 11,129 278,088
Additions HE 2,583 634 210 756 699 3,359 - 8,241
Construction expenditure capitalised ~ EEFRETEAR - - - - - - 3,464 3,464
Written off fii A (4,014) (64) (148) (443) - (366) - (5,035)
Disposal HE - - - - (395) - - (395)
Effect of foreign currency EiEE/7E
exchange differences 26,797 31 811 8 95 - 1,351 29,093
At31 March 2018 RZE-NE=R=1-H 281,841 959 8,712 942 1,698 3,360 15,944 313,456
Accumulated depreciation and 2 HERAE
impairment
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~"5mA-A 1478 804 51 253 1025 m - 3783
Charge for the year FEARE 17,259 16 887 134 118 92 - 18,506
Impairment losses recognised in RERPZERRAEER
profit or loss - - - - 52 - - 52
Written off i3 (74) = 9 - - - - (83)
Disposal k3 - )] - = - - . )
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries &K B A 7l 4
(note 26) (Hiita8) - (464) (12) (37 - = - (513)
Effect of foreign currency ERER/E
exchange differences (424) (19) (19) (5) (55) - - (522)
At31March2017and 1 April 2017 RZE—t£=F=+-8
R=Z—t%mA-A 18,239 336 898 345 1,140 264 - 21,22
Charge for the year FRER 29,218 100 2,394 201 182 536 - 32,631
Written off i (1,497) (48) (109) (274) - (309) - (2,237)
Disposal HE - - - - (296) - - (296)
Effect of foreign currency EizEzpE
exchange differences 3,388 29 214 8 95 - - 3,734
At31 March 2018 RZE-\E=f=+-H 49,348 a7 3,397 280 1121 91 - 55,054
Carrying amounts REfE
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\$=f=+-H 232,493 542 5,315 662 577 2,869 15,944 258,402
At 31 March 2017 R=F—+F=f=+-H 238,236 2 6941 276 159 103 11,129 256,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. BEFL#BERE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at beginning of the year R F#] Z BRE & 3,481 3,669
Additions for the year RERRE - 41,506
Disposal & - (40,861)
Amortisation for the year 2N EF S 8 (73) (615)
Effect of foreign currency EHERZZE
exchange differences 362 (218)
Carrying amount at end of the year RERZEREBE 3,770 3,481
Current portion TR ENE (77) (69)
Non-current portion SEMBNEL D 3,693 3,412
Note: HaF -
The Group's leasehold land is held under medium-term leases REEMAE 30 TR B EAE &5 B WAL
and is situated in mainland China. ABE-
15. GOODWILL 15. B8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost 2%
At beginning and at end of the year REMRFR 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss 2R EESE
At beginning and at end of the year RETRER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount FREE - =
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'M.EN'

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HBEZ-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

EAMBREME

GOODWILL (continued) 15. B8 (&)
Others segment: HignHE:
For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had HBEARNE  BEIEIERIBEeEL
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged B (HEZEREERTPBEEEMRER -
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing, PIEEE EHKEMER) Wit AHM
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong DEET - ERERE  BBERYRER
and PRC, and included under others segment. The BRAR ([BLEER]) REKB A
management considered Shing Kee International B RE ORI ER AT ([BE
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL") together with its BE]) (i (BLBEEYREE])BOR
subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics & Warehousing EEZREELEN  TARBELHNE
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation of f&C /& = A 155 IR B
wineE ORYI) BBRAR]) (“Sealand”) (collectively the
“SKIL Group”) is the CGU for allocation of goodwill as
synergies are derived in such arrangement.
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. HMtEFLEE
Customer
relationship
EFBR
HKS'000
FET
Cost 29N
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, RZZTE—RFMOA—QH"
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 —E—+F=A=+—H"
—E—t+FWA-—HK
—E-N\E=H=+—H 4,202
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B RRE
impairment
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, RZZE—R"FEMA—AR -
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 —E—+F=ZA=+—H8"
—T—tFMA—HK
—E-N\F=A=1+—H 4,202
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H -
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+FE=A=+—H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

17. INVENTORIES 17. FE&

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Merchandise 7 o 24,859 12,262
Raw materials R 543 40,238
Finished goods SR o 24,093 =
49,495 52,500

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. BWESRERERE
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade receivables W E 5 I8 97,035 447,984
Bills receivables JE W E & 2,277,019 1,043,584
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note (b)) & : = BR¥EE & (M7 kb)) (73) (73)
2,373,981 1,491,495

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Notes:
(@) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date

MERKREZFRARERERB AN —F

I«
Hist

(a) BR iR D AT

ATRARBERRZEREHAEER
252 BUE 5508 IR RERE)

or shipment date and net of allowance for doubtful ZEBRER DA :
debts is as follows:

2018 2017
—Z2-N\#¥ —T—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 94,551 426,838
61 - 120 days 61-120H 1,540 19,678
121 - 180 days 121-180H - 1,329
181 - 360 days 181-360H 597 66
Over 360 days BiB360H 274 -
96,962 447,911

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A 7



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-Z— \&=A=+—H 4

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of bills receivables based on the shipment
date is as follows:

18.

—

.‘ﬁéﬂﬁ%iﬁ

BUWEZRERRERE (&)

Hiat: (4)

BRER DT (&)

UTRRBEBRZEERHZ25 2 E
WR i 2 ARk DA -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HKs’000 HKS'000

FETT FETT

0 - 60 days 0-60H 234,552 112,670
61 - 120 days 61-120H 477,388 418,555
121 - 180 days 121-180H 434,396 238,107
181 - 360 days 181-360H 973,632 274,252
Over 360 days (remark) 83608 (/A7) 157,051 =
2,277,019 1,043,584

Trade and bills receivables are usually due within 360
days (2017: 90 to 360 days) from the date of billing,
shipment date or bills issue date. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 27(a).

Remark:

The amount of bills receivables with ageing over 360 days
represented bills with 360 days maturity day and were
received by the banks within one to two months after the
shipment date. These bills were fully settled after the year end.

BRESHBRERBFANEEA
B35 A s E B H#EET3608 (=
T—+F:90F3608) AT T BEAR
SEEERRME —PHFBHRK =
27(a) °

it
FRIRBIE360R BN R BB EHRIHAR

360 HMRE  NETHBHE—ZMERRNHR
THRE - ZEZERELEARE2HES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

18.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. BUWEFREARERE (&)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) HieE: (#&)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) JEWE SHIANZE ZRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills ERRKBZHREREE ZREBED
receivables are recorded using an allowance account ERABERLER KRIEXKEEHUD
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the BBzt RERERNR £t
amount is remote, in which case the impairment BAT RESESEEMEEKRE S
loss is written off against trade and bills receivables I REE (RHEE20))
directly (see note 2(i)).

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts REBEZS
2018 2017
EY S —Etf
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
K FET FET
At beginning of the year RE 73 160
Amount written off upon HE B A B RS £ 58
disposal of subsidiaries - (87)
At end of the year RER 73 73
Notes: Btiz
(i) At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of the (i) R-ZE—NE=A=+—0 &

(ii)

Group amounting to HK$73,000 (2017:
HK$73,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables were outstanding for over 360
days at the end of the reporting period or
were due from customers with financial
difficulties. No specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognised during the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Upon disposal of subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2017, HK$87,000 of the
trade receivables previously impaired were
derecognised.

SEERAMNETAEREZE
I & 5 38 A73,0006 70 (=
—+4 :73,00077T) © ERIREE
ZEWHIB AR RS BHREER
8 1360 H - K fE U m ¥ B B A
EZEFPHFBE -HE=ZZT—N
ER-_T—+&F=A=+—HI
N RERFE RS P BE

(ii) RBE=_Z—tF=A=+—H
IEFEHENRBARRE BEEUH
R EIREZ ERE 5KIE
87,0008 Tt ©
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18.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18.
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME!
FEMBR

BUWEZRERRERE (&)

Hiat: (4)

(0 RRE 2 EWE 5 R IB MR iE

Y EMBHLERERSREZEEE S

neither individually nor collectively considered to be RIEZBREDITIT :
impaired are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired R A ROR(E 96,919 388,941
Past due but not impaired B8 BB KR E
Less than 1 month past due wE L R1E A - 31,925
1 to 3 months past due #H1 =31 A - 25,858
Over 3 months past due 161 HRiEB @3 (& A 43 1,187
43 58,970
96,962 447,911

The ageing analysis of bills receivables that are neither

I % 18 51 2k KRR AR AR (E 2 B R 1R

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired ZERE AT :
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired R EHA KRB 2,277,019 1,043,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

18.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired
(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivables and customers for whom
there was no significant history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a few independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Transfer of financial assets

During the year, the Group discounted bills
receivables to banks for cash proceeds. If the bills
receivables are not paid at maturity, the banks have
the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled
balance. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the receivables and has recognised the
cash received on the discounting as secured bank
advances.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the bills receivables that have been
discounted but have not been derecognised
amounted to HK$879,867,000 (2017: HK$480,620,000)
and the carrying amount of the associated liability is
HK$851,210,000 (2017: HK$414,080,000).

18.

BUREZRERRE (&)

Hiat: (&)

()

AREZEKEZFRBAREE (&)

R FOR (B 2 FE MR IR T B IR FE MR
BREREBZHRUESRERCLHEZE
Eo

BB RFEZ ERFIAT BN LS
HAEHERFTRIFEHENBLETF 1R
ERELR AREREPZEEER
WEERE BZEERDKERA
228D REEERRBRERAZES
REHERRE B - AR B Wt % F A
BRI E MR o

SREBEEZEE

RAFE  AEE SRR S FIAK -
WERBNRITREE - WK R B AR EER
FHS A RITARERARE N
AEBER AN AEE Y EE RS
b ERKE IR 2 SRR R KB & S
BRER BRI 2 BORE E R AR
ZBWIER S ERAA EIRRITRAK

RS HR - BRI EREUEER Z B
= g 7 BR 1 8 /5879,867,00008 7T ( — &
—-+4F 1 480,620,000/ 70) R AE 2
BREE/4851,210,000/8 7T (=& — 4 :
414,080,0007% 7T ) ©
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FEMBHRRMEE"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ-_Z—\E=A=+—HILt&FE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FE{FIE -RE& R EH i EWFIE

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Amount due from a non-controlling interest & U 3F 2 A% 45 25 71 I8
(note (a)) (Htit(a)) 6,242 5,938
Other receivables H b fE W RIE 137 108
Less: Impairment allowance R E R
(notes (a) and (b)) (Htet@Xm)) (5,950) (5,950)
429 96
Trade deposits paid (note (e)) ENB &S (fitE) 530,308 -
Other deposits and prepayments H iz & RIEFFHIE 10,781 18,785
Other tax prepayments (note (d)) HMBEFIE (Haz ) 9,341 17,853
550,859 36,734
Representing: Rk :
Current mE 548,846 36,037
Non-current (note (c)) ERB) (Mt () 2,013 697
550,859 36,734
Notes: HiaE -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (a) RETDNZERESEMKLZAAE

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one of
which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. It is interest-bearing at 5.01% per annum
and was due on 30 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2018, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance of HK$5,938,000 (2017:
HK$5,938,000) is provided.

RAFZBMEHRER Eh—FAA
SEE2EMBE R ABLRBEKYR -
BRIRIRF ) R5.01%:1 8 RARZE
—tFNA=THER

R-ZZE—N\F=ZA=+—0 &HEH
HA 3 51 12 %k {8 B 155,938,0008 T (=
—-£ 4 15,938,000/ 7C) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

19.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the

Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is

remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against other receivables directly (see note 2(i)).

19. BENFKE RERHMEKRKE
(%)
Kzt : (%)
(b)  HEAMEWHRE 2R

A B fh B UK ZRIE 2 R (B S 18 Ty {5 F 4
BRI BRIEANEEEHNIKREH BT
B2 ] ge AR (R AUMERIGR - FELLIER T
BEBESEEMEELMEKZRE (R
B EE2(3) ) °

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts REBEZZE)
2018 2017
—g-NfF —T—tf
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
g3 FET FET
At beginning of the year REA 5,950 5,660
Impairment allowance B HER R B B B
recognised (i) - 290
At end of the year RER (i) 5,950 5,950
Note: Btiz
(i) At 31 March 2018, other receivables of (i) R—ZE—NEFE=ZA=+—8"

the Group including amount due from
a non-controlling interest amounting to
HK$5,950,000 (2017: HK$5,950,000) were
individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables were
outstanding for over 1 year at the end of the
reporting period and were due from a non-
controlling interest with financial difficulties.
Accordingly, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of HKS$nil (2017: HK$290,000) were
recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018.

Except for rental deposits of HK$2,013,000 (2017:
HK$697,000) which are expected to be recovered after
more than one year, all other receivables are expected
to be recovered within one year and trade deposits
paid and other deposits and prepayments are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

ANEEH A fEUSRIE (B IEEK
FE iR 4 25 £ 78 ) 5,950,000/ 70
(=Z—+%:5,950,000/57T) 2
BERIEE A RE BRIREZ
FEMGRIB AR HRE HARE B —
0 K FEUR T 3 B R £ 2 FEE
BREZMRE Bt REE=
T N\E=ZA=+—HLEER
RIEERFNBERT T (=
T —+4F 290,000 7T ) °

BREHBER —Frkbo>AeES
2,013,000/ 7T ( =& — + £E : 697,000/%5
TC) Z 5N P i R UK SR IE TE B S AT R
—FRRE MEMFEZES AR
%& RIEMNRBEEBE R —FRILE K
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19.

20.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  19. T RIE - - RE&E R HthENFRE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (%&)

Notes: (continued) Kiat: (&)

(d) The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid (d) HMhBENHEEREBEMIGES  Ha]
value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset BRI SH7E B 2 & 2 P BB A AR AR 2R
the value-added tax payable arising from the future ETHEMEE Z BB ER -
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

(e) At 31 March 2018, trade deposits of HK$530,308,000 (e) RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—H Xx&EE
(2017: HK$nil) were paid by the Group to the suppliers 1 fE 7 & 5 12 £530,308,0007 7T (=
for purchase of merchandise and raw materials which T—tFE) UBEEDRRME
will be recognised as purchases after the year end FHASERRAAEBINEY RRM
date upon the delivery of the merchandise and raw BNETFEARERARESR-
materials to the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 200 RERREEEY ZRHERT

= g = 2 A

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND EFREHMEREREER

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

(@)  Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERRSEEY

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEEIRE 212,545 15,165
Cash and cash equivalents in the RE AR AR R
consolidated statement of financial AR ERER 2
position and the consolidated ReRREEED
statement of cash flows 212,545 15,165
Note: Wit -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITHRSEGARTERIER Z)ZEHF
daily bank deposit rates. = ERELF B o
(b)  Restricted bank deposits (b) ERFILTFR

At 31 March 2018, the Group has no restricted
bank deposit. At 31 March 2017, interest-free
deposits of HK$7,547,000 were placed at banks
to secure the bills payables (note 21(b)) and are
released upon the settlement of relevant bills
payables during the year ended 31 March 2018.

R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—8 &%
B EIRERITER-R=2F
—tF=A=+—8 ®2FBFXK
£7,547,0007 7T * Ji1F IR ER1T « 1E
BEMEEZER (KE210)) @ I
REBZ2_ZE—N\F=A=+—HL
FERNENEBENZBERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

20.

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 200 RERBSEZEY ZRHIEIT
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND ERREMBEESREEN (&)
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
(continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) RETEMEELEEZHE
financing activities
Bank
advances for
discounted bills
SRITALIA
SRR
HKS000
FAET
(note 23)
(Kt7#23)
At 1 April 2017 R=ZZE—+tFW™A—H 414,080
Changes from financing cash flows Ft &R &7 & & 428,600
Exchange adjustments T H 3 & 8,530
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-—NF=A=+—H 851,210
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2. ENEZRERREE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Trade payables FEfE 5 5IR 121,591 304,426
Bills payables (note (b)) FERT & (Mit b)) 1,123,862 642,984
1,245,453 947,410

Notes:

Trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

At 31 March 2018, included in bills payables
HKS$nil (2017: HK$237,344,000) being secured
by the restricted bank deposits of HK$nil (2017:
HK$7,547,000) (note 20(b)).

(b)

ENESFARZRBEREBEN —FAE

R-ZB—NEFE=F=+—8 " ENZE+H
T (ZF — £ 4 237,344,000 7T )
HASZRERITERES T (2T — L5
7,547,000 7T ) {E3E 38 (FiE20(b) ) ©
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE —

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date
or shipment date is as follows:

21.

*%Aﬂﬁﬁiﬁ =
—NEF=ZA=+— EI-

BENEZREREE (&)

Wi (&)
Q) BR R AT

AT RARBEBRZERBHAEER
252 B 5 5B Z BRIk DA -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHETT

0 - 60 days 0-60H 105,523 242,641
61 - 120 days 61-120H 9,878 19,583
121 - 180 days 121-180H 1,377 10,988
181 - 360 days 181-360H 696 1,126
Over 360 days B #8360 H 4,117 30,088
121,591 304,426

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

UTARBERRZELERHZ5 2 E

analysis of bills payables based on the shipment date NEEZEBRS T
is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 129,897 154,874
61 - 120 days 61-120H - 202,782
121 - 180 days 121-180H 335,211 73,664
181 - 360 days 181-360H 658,754 211,664
1,123,862 642,984
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

22,

23.

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
PAYABLES

22.

B8R BREREMENRE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Accruals and other payables FE T & PR I A fh & - 5K I8 64,247 60,777
Trade deposits received BWE ZEE 549,356 43,992
Derivative financial instruments MESHIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts —RHEIINEE A

(note 27(d)) (Ht5E27(d)) 22,779 8,647
636,382 113,416

Note: Kiat -

All of the accruals and other payables, trade deposits received
and derivative financial instruments are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED
BILLS

At 31 March 2018, the bank advances for discounted
bills of HK$851,210,000 (2017: HK$414,080,000) are
secured by certain of the bills receivables (note 18(d))
and repayable within the next financial year with a
repayment on demand clause.

Included in the balances was HK$538,076,000 (2017:
HK$30,834,000) bearing interest which are paid
monthly until maturity date and the remaining
balances of HK$313,134,000 (2017: HKS$383,246,000)
was charged with bills discount charges upon bank
advances and no future interest payment to be made.
The interest rates and bills discount rates ranged from
2.69% t0 5.62% (2017: 2.02% to 8.10%) per annum.

23.

B ERREMENSIE BEREZRERITE
SR TAZHBEHMEN —FREEHERREA
HIRBRMEE -

RITHERBRN

MR-_E—-—NF=ZF=+—H RTHHE
2= 5 $1.5%851,210,000/8 70 (= F — £ 4 ¢
414,080,000/8 70 ) JILAE TR S EE AR
(M E18(d)) RZBR T — B B F EE
B WABRERERGR-

4 # 1 538,076,0008 0 (=T — £ & ¢
30,834,000/ 7T) B & A X 7 B & 2| #§
H 8 T 45 $:313,134,0008 ¢ (=& —+
F :383,246,00075 7T ) B3R R 1T B A R iK%
BhIR & A B BA S AR RFE - F R
MERMIREREFN T269%2562% (—F
— 5 :2.02%%E8.10% ) °
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24. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24,
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated

statement of financial position represents:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE;%EN
FEMBRRMN

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-—Z— N\F=A=+—HIEFE

REMBRRRZAE/HR

REMBRR R ZEMBIEE:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH] 17,665 43,160
Provision for the year RNEFZ R
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBHEH 45,949 11,378
- PRCEIT —HREREMEHR 6,952 16,585
52,901 27,963
Over-provision in respect BAFEBRERE
of prior years
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNED - (218)
Income tax paid during the year FRNBNAEH
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBANEN (19,136) (40,454)
- PRCEIT —HEBEMEH (10,605) (14,136)
(29,741) (54,590)
Income tax recovered FRNEWEFTER
during the year
- PRCEIT —HREREMEHR - 848
Effect of foreign currency EHERZZE
exchange differences 986 502
At end of the year RER 41,811 17,665
Representing: Rk
Tax recoverable A4 175 18 (462) (442)
Tax payable FES B IR 42,273 18,107
At end of the year RER 41,811 17,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

24. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24, f.ﬁ%’é‘
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)
recognised
(i) The components of deferred tax

assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

MBRRKRZAER (F&)

CRIABEEHHEEERAE

() ESAUBRRRERZE
ERIEE E R A B H RR
EREBEBNT

Depreciation Depreciation

allowances in excess of
in excess related
of related depreciation
Deferred tax arising from: depreciation allowances Total
ELEHERE : MERHE HEEBMEE
EBEETE MERHE st
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2016 RZT—RF
MmA—H 94 (84) 10
(Credited)/charged (5t N) ./
to profit or loss M aER
(note 7(a)) (Ktiz7@a)) (28) 35 7
At 31 March 2017, R-E—+F
1 April 2017 and =H=+—8"
31 March 2018 —E—LF
MA—B K=
T—-\F=A
=+—H 66 (49) 17
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) ERE B IS AR R ETHR

statement of financial position:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RirE B ISR R ER
recognised in the ZIREBIRE E
consolidated statement of
financial position (49) (49)
Deferred tax liabilities RERE MR RIER
recognised in the EEFIBEAE
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
17 17
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HBE—_T—N\F=A=+—HIEFE =“‘e""F‘!"“ﬁ“r

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$10,760,000 (2017: HK$8,595,000)
and HK$55,350,000 (2017: HK$53,690,000)
available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely and with
expiry date of within 5 years, respectively.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2018, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to HK$80,015,000
(2017: HK$59,741,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of HKS$4,001,000 (2017: HK$2,987,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

24,

IIVi\

(c)

(d)

MBRRKRZAER (F)

KERELEHEEE
R-E—NF=ZA=+—H &
& B K &) F B 15 E5 1810,760,000/75
7o (=—ZF — £ % :8,595,000/% /0 )
155,350,000 7L (= — £ F:
53,690,000/ 7T ) A A LA 85 2K 20
Fl-woRATERPEELRA
F R F HA o /B 7 K B TEURI R 2R U5 A
TR B It R kB TE B 48 RE SRR AT
RIBEE-

KERZELHBEEE

BRI AR B 1D 2 FTAS B0 0 LA AR BT
BRARR-_ZEZENF—A—HE
FTBRER 2 35 F Bk 2 I% BB BN TE
AR ©

RZFE-NF=ZA=+—H8 8}
BRBIRD KGN EE 2 R EHE

780,015,000 7T (=T — £ F :
59,741,000/ 7t ) ° B A A & 4%
%IJEA%MTJ*“—?Z%éﬂz% Az
RZERBENTRAERA R
15 R AE 5 R ¢ B i 34 Bh R 52
58 F) 2 FE A5 R IE B SRR ST B IR
£ 154,001,000 7T (= F — £ 4F
2,987,000/ 70 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25. RAK#E
(a)  The reconciliation between the opening and (a) NEBERE S ENE D R F )
closing balances of each component of the HEREHRZEHREHNGEERE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the R o ANESEERAKIT DR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FYEFRZ BEFBHOT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share
Share Share Merger Capital option Contributed Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
BRE
k& RBEE  AfRE  E5ERE i EARR RHER @it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HK$ 000
T TET TAT TET AT AT T T
At 1 April 2016 RZZ-7"ENMA-R 41 18,069 (1522) 7,851 6,252 94218 (23420) 105,559
Loss for the year rEEER - - - = = = (17,854) (17,854)
Total comprehensive expenses AR 2 AR AE
for the year - - - - - - (17,854) (17,854)

Shares issued under share option 18 1 BB RRIET B %47 2 IR (7

scheme (note 25(b)(}) (HrEsmly) 106 23,901 - - (6,252) - - 17,755
Transfer from contributed AERRRERZ2HER

surplus to accumulated (HiE23(0))

losses (note 25(c)(vi) - - - - - (62,258) 62,258 -

Dividend declared and paid in ABEEEERRENRE
respect of the previous year (HiEiom)

(note 10(b)) - - - - - - (20,984) (20,984)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tE=A=1-A 4217 41970 (1522) 7851 - 31960 - 84476
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+EmA-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 - 31,960 - 84,476
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (6,787) (6,787)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EAR R AE

for the year - - - - - - (6,787) (6,787)
At31 March 2018 R=E-\E=A=1-H 4217 0,970 (1,522) 7,851 - 31,960 (6,787) 77,689
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-Z—\F=A=+—HIEFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

FEMBR3

25. BARKG#HE (&)

Share capital (b) K&
2018 2017
“E-N\E —E1E
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RGEA &8 &7 % B &8
Note HKS$'000 HKS000
it FEn FET
Authorised: Py
At the beginning and REQNRER
at the end of the year (BlREBE0.0002%E T
(ordinary shares of ZEBR)
HK$0.0002 each) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At the beginning of the year A4
(ordinary shares of (BREE.0002E T
HK$0.0002 each) ZEBR) 21,084,072,140 4,217 20,554,072,140 411
Shares issued under REBERER EIET
share option scheme 2R (i) - - 530,000,000 106
At the end of the year RER
(ordinary shares of (Z A E0.0002 BT
HK$0.0002 each) ZERR) 21,084,072,140 4217 21,084,072,140 4217
Note: Vo
(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the (i) BE—_T—+tE=A=+—HItEE"

Company allotted and issued 530,000,000
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.0002
each.

The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

N 7 g 2 & % 97530,000,0000% & A &
{B0.0002%8 7T 2 L@k -

EREEAARREBTREIR S I
BERERARAAEG LREBEEOKR—F-
EEBABRRARBANGEETHZ AR

FHAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

25.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.

Merger reserve

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

25.

BRAF e (&)

(c)

EELEERAR
(i) 7 a8

(i)

(i)

RinaBER A BRE
—AN—FREE (A
E) RARB 2 ARIRE o

=Nl

RIFA R BB RBE R P
M PTETT < S EEAR S
(IREEA])  AREARZ
TEE=F-ARNBRAER
HERAEE 2 8RR ZEI
REAEBZAHHEER
RIFEEBHEREZ AR
—RAME AR ZRNHEE
BLR R B 3 R B R A T 3%
TR 2 EEMEZB2
ERe

RN

BAREBER VT ERE R
I Bl B AR PR R A R) B2 B B
ZRABRALZ ARIELZH
BORIERERRE ARR
RABEERZERARZIER
FA R MBS AR IR A RIS
I5 o



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would be
transferred from the reserve account to
retained profits.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the
portion of the fair value of unexercised
share options granted that has been
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 2(0)(ii).

25.

BRAFK e (&)

(c)

HEEERAZR (&)
(iv) EE@E

(v)

RIRE AR BER A&
EETHBEMEQRZA
7% L BR B 1208 F R D 72 10%
EREAERE BEEHSE
HEEDFEMER Z250%5
lE- BB MNAR KR
73 IR AR B, AT B8 1 2R AN (R 4 o

RIRE AR BER A&
B EL KA TERAES
7 AP B P B A R)ZB 8 % R 5%
EEBWAEARS%EL%
WEEXRGTENE TFEE
BEXTRHE 2B HEREE
AEEEZEEEEERAY
REATHETFUEA %
HEESASEBHFEER
2 0] {R B i Tl

BIREH R

BB B B AT B R
TEMBIE Y AR
B W35 2 1R A EE2A0))
BB 19 A ZEE 2 4 AT ER
ZREHREER -

Annual Report 2017/18 4 %f 2017/18

147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

25.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

(vii)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(s).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of debt, which includes bank advances for
discounted bills disclosed in note 23, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

25.

BRAF e (&)

(c)

(d)

HEEER AR (&)

wi)  EHEE
RIEHR  RQR 2B
BEBIEHBAR TR G E
BREEEANG EHAERIE
FTEEXZERSRE Z+E
WEB AR B BEHRBHRIRAAN
R AR A R R BT E
Bz&8E-

i) B G
[EHHEaEmARLESR
INEFE 2 TERRFTELZ
P& 3 2= & o I RE IR HIRE2(s)
sz st R IE -

EXERE
AEBHEEEEANBNREBE
B A & E T & R
AEEALREBERAFELE AR
REFENEMERKDH  NEBEH
ERRREBEHFHRITTIE -

AEBNEARBEREER (B
BiFE23FT i R 2 RITRER IR RR)
RARREREANEG#EE (BED
BITRARGHRE)
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25.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d)

Capital management (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:

25.

BRAFK e (&)

(d)

BEAEE (&)

ARAREZTERMABEARRBE 1F
Bz -y BEEEREARK
AREEEEREE AR - RIE
Exga ARERABRBRITHKR
BRI RN AR ETHEREDR
BER UTFEHHEBREERRE-

AEBEBEZ BN IMNEE A
FIEPTIR °

AEBEEREERBL X (AERF
ERNERNAER) ERER
BEARAEE ARMERL R W
THRZEEABLERMT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HKS000

FET FET

Bank advances for discounted bills 8178538 = #& 24 3% 851,210 414,080
Equity attributable to owners RAFER AEIGHER

of the Company 682,443 379,253

Equity and total borrowings Hm R BEE 1,533,653 793,333

Gearing ratio BEARKEE 55.5% 52.2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

26.

—N\F=H=

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2012 for the purpose
of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 6 January 2003 was terminated on the
same date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the date of
adoption. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future development
and expansion of the Group. The Share Option Scheme
shall provide incentive to encourage participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results
of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any individual being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representatives of any
member of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group) who,
as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion,
has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

T—HALEFE

26.

REGEUROGAER 2XZ

ARABR_E——FNA=-+tBETZ
ARRREEFRE FRMEIR G ERE
sTEl ([RERRHEETEl))  LLAREK2EE
REBBUYRRBRIEER =TT =F—
Hﬁﬁ%%imzmﬁ%%%ﬁiﬂ KR IEM A S B
185 - & RIBE ARAE T S8 R ER A% B BB AT+
iﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁxﬁ&ixﬁ ERETE BRI
AEBA RS - B RABE A ez 2HE
AAEERRBRZEERBRME N - B
FTEIG IR R S E2EE RERAEE
ZHEELEAE N TESERESZAA

RBEBRBEECEZ N REMMIE KR -
BRETEZAER2HEBETMNS A
AEBEAKE AR ZES BHEE K
B EEgAR (BEASEEAKE AR
ZEAAITRIENITER) 2AL MES
SARBEEEALZRIRE SRBEFEL
%%E‘J'FFZEEE¥#$%IZ¥FV&H??
SRR XBEBREALZ TIEER ¥R
%DSE%&E@*EE%I%%E/H\%ZK%IZET
ANER - RELBRE2ZLH R AR L A H
RET=T A AER - EFRR LR ERET
IR AN B HA AR 5T+ 4 HA PR [ i 18 ok B AR 4
SRR R EBER - BRBRIERARA
HEMELEREZENENARAAZ&
¥H A1.0078 7T ©
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT. —

HAMIBBRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance by)
the participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on
which the option is granted, which date must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the
option period after the option has been granted by the
Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from
the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

26.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares
in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding
lapsed options), must not represent more than 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of approval of the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit as the case may be.
As at 31 March 2018, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,085,407,210 shares.

On 1 April 2015, the Company granted share options
to subscribe for a total of 93,000,000 ordinary shares
of HKS$0.002 each under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme to eligible persons. The exercise price of the
options granted was HK$0.335 per share and the
exercisable period was from 1 April 2015 to 31 March
2017. Among the options granted, 71,000,000 options
were granted to the directors of the Company and
22,000,000 options were granted to the employees of
the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and relevant
rules of the Listing Rules, upon the share subdivision
becoming effective on 9 June 2015, each of the
issued and unissued ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.002 each in the share capital of the Company was
subdivided into ten shares of par value of HK$0.0002
each and the exercise price of the outstanding options
was adjusted to HK$0.0335 per share accordingly.

26.
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS=
FEMBHRRMEE"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ-_Z—\E=A=+—HILt&FE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for

one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross

in shares.

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, there
is no outstanding unexpired and unexercised
share options.

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

260 REZEURDARERZRS
(%&)
B BRES THEARENATRE KA
RAlZ TR W EBUARGDES -
(a) RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HKk=_Z
—tF=A=+—H BIEETE
BN R JE R R 1 R AT (R B A A
(b) BREZERMNETHTEER
R :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price share options  exercise price  share options
T BRE ik B B
THEE 28 18 2R
HKS HKS
BT BT

Outstanding at the RE 8 ARITEE
beginning of the year

Exercised during FERITHE
the year

Outstanding and RERBRITER
exercisable attheend A F77{#
of the year

The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise for share options exercised during
the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$0.4404.
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, there is no share
option outstanding.

- 0.0335 530,000,000

0.0335  (530,000,000)

HE-T—t+t&#=A=t+—HItHE
[ BATERERENITEE B 2 i
FHPR(E £0.440475 0 N T — N\
ER-FE—+tHE=A=+—H I
M ARITIE 2 BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

26.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Binomial
Model. The contractual life of the share option
is used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

26.

BREGEIUIRORER 2R S

(%)

(c)

BREZAIABRRR

ERE LB REZ REMRE 2R
BzrrRE2EERLBREZ
RAEFE-BEREBBRE 2 5T
ARETIRBE_BAAEAEE B
BEANFHEEAZBEAZEA
B o

Bz A AERBRR

1 April 2015
R-ZB-—HF
Date granted £ B H A—H
Fair value per share option at ERERERTEBHZARE HK$0.1183
measurement date 0.1183% 7T
Share price f&1E HK$0.33
0.33/8 7T
Exercise price 1TfE(E HK$0.335
0.335/87C
Expected volatility T8 HA IR 18
(expressed as weighted average (A= T FT A 2 i T K 18 51w )
volatility used in the modelling
under the Binomial Model) 75.997%
Option life % A% 4F B
(expressed as weighted average (A== TR A 2 Nt A F IR )
life used in the modelling 2 years
under the Binomial Model) 26F
Exercise multiple TR B
(expressed as weighted average (A= X TFT A 2 it A EE51R)
multiple used in the modelling
under the Binomial Model) 29
Expected dividends T8 H AR 2 1.82%
Risk-free interest rate (based on 42 [, Bz A1) &
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve) (REBEERSFHMETE) 0.452%

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

BB PSR T AR IR AR A R R T AR L o Y
AHEMRBRENREL B AR
BRI & E BRI BB
HE b S P 75 T 355 AR
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBBRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - = +—

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AGE= B =

27. TRITACZHBEEBEERAR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =]
INSTRUMENTS
The Group's major financial instruments include the AEBsETESRTERETITE:
followings:
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAZER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 53 REE 2,373,981 1,491,495
Amount due from a non-controlling JRE Wit FE 420 S e 2 73R [
interest and other receivables H b & W R IE 429 96
Restricted bank deposits PR 1 #R TTT/TA - 7,547
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEY 212,545 15,165
Loans and receivables B3 FEUGR 2,586,955 1,514,303
Financial liabilities EREE
Trade and bills payables ER B 5% IE R ER 1,245,453 947,410
Accruals and other payables FEST & A I H b fE 5 58 64,247 60,777
Bank advances for discounted bills RITANER RBEB R 851,210 414,080
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHRATRz eRMEE 2,160,910 1,422,267
Derivative financial instruments TESBMT A 22,779 8,647
Financial liabilities at fair value through NAEFTABEZ
profit or loss TR BE 22,779 8,647

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in

the respective notes. The main risks arising from the FﬂIEFEEZEgﬂ
Group's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity @ﬂh =@ R

risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies BB 2 B ER A T3 o
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Rz LRy - ATEIRE
management manages and monitors these exposures =i

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

ERTAFBERHEBMETIRE AEEE
2 RIEERR
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ“ g ﬁﬁﬁx}i L%

CRENE

BEER

Hﬁ&ﬁxﬂxﬁy\ﬂ =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

(i)

Credit risk refers to the risk that
a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group
has adopted a policy of dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade receivables. In
order to minimize risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
The management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group carries out
searches on the credibility of the new
customer and assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for the customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed
once a year.

27.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HBEZ-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(continued)

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condition of customers.
These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer
operates. Debts are usually due within
360 days (2017: 90 to 360 days) from the
date of billing, shipment date or bills
issue date. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from its customers.

The management considers no
impairment is necessary for the trade
receivables in view of the customers’
good repayment history and low
default rates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. At the
end of the reporting period, 98% (2017:
49%) and 100% (2017: 97%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor and the
three largest trade debtors respectively.
In the opinion of the directors of the
Group, the three largest trade debtors
are well established customers with
good credibility.

27.

TMTACHHEREERQR
B (&)

(a)

FERR (%)

(ii)

(iii)

(&)
AEBSHE L MBEMNE
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HEZHE R UAEREIE
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BRRE P& E TR AR
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AEEIWERAERP ZRIK
e

ENEFP RIFHERDE K
BRENRRE BEEERRS
BAR Y E BRI LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRIECHERREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B2 (&)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERR (&)

(iv) The Group’s credit risk on bills (iv)
receivables is considered as minimal as
the bills are issued by banks with good
reputation.

(v) The Group also has credit risk (v)
attributable to amount due from a
non-controlling interest and other
receivables. The management of the
Group monitors the credit risk on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of the
counterparties’ financial position and
condition are performed periodically.
These evaluations focus on the
counterparties’ current ability to pay,
and take into account the value of any
assets pledged by the counterparties as
security for the outstanding balances.

(vi) The credit risk on restricted bank (vi)
deposits and cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating

AEEBRKEENEER
BRERAEN RERZS
EBRTDREERF ZRITHE
H o

AER B 7R A B U I B A 2
FRIR B EL A UK R TR T A 2
EERB AERBEEEER
BERCEERR -AKETE
X B F 77 2 MBI
EARRETEEF G -ZE
A E R 5 EF 75 B AT
BREN AREERSY
FHERREBERABRERR
B EEEE-

ZRFRITERARR S R
ReSENZEERREA
B RARRSZHFHRE
BERFAEES TSEEN
A2 BRT

agencies.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of EEAREE R EWE ZHIERER
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from LA R E A fE W SR I P & 2 (2 B R
trade and bills receivables and other receivables b o#E— P EEHE D IR
are set out in notes 18 and 19 respectively. 185219 °
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The cash management policy of the Group
includes short-term investment of cash
surpluses and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term. The Group relies on its liquid funds
and bank advances as significant sources of
liquidity.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for the bank advances for
discounted bills which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at
the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows
the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the Group can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the bank advances
for discounted bills with immediate effect.

27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. ERTAZHEEBREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HREBELEAR (&)
2018
—E-N\f
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year cash flow amount
CLEN: T
ReRE
RER R-—FR ot RHE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities: T4 &mMEME:
Trade and bills payables ERESHBERER - 1245453 1,245,453 1,245,453
Accruals and other payables [EEH 2 A R H A R 0R - 64,247 64,247 64,247
Bank advances for discounted bills  $E17853H ZE 2 851,210 - 851,210 851,210
851,210 1,309,700 2,160,910 2,160,910
2017
—T—+tfF
Total
contractual
Within  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year cash flow amount
BHRER
RenmeE
REX R—ERA k) FHEE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHETT FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FfT£EMERE:
Trade and bills payables ERESFEREE - 947,410 947,410 947,410
Accruals and other payables FEET 2 A R E At 3R IR - 60,777 60,777 60,777
Bank advances for discounted bills ~ $R{7BE3R ZE K 414,080 - 414,080 414,080
414,080 1,008,187 1,422,267 1,422,267
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

27.

TMTACHHEREERQR
B (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELEK (&)
The following tables summarises the maturity TREIHBIREKBERGER 2R
analysis of bank advances for discounted bills TUHREBRBRBRERELM
with a repayment on demand clause based HiBEERKHEREL 2B BHE S
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in o st RASE 2 AR - NERE
the bills contracts. Taking into account of the EERRBITTAAREITERNERE
Group's financial position, the directors of the TR ER -AEEEEERE A
Group do not consider it probable that the BIRTRARBSRIERIRE NFEH
banks will exercise their discretion to demand HEERBAEE-
immediate repayment. The directors of the
Group believe that such bank advances will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bills contracts.
Maturity Analysis — Bank advances for BB H 757 — I ESE A MEHZ 2R
discounted bills subject to a repayment TR B Z BB (IRIE B EEHNH
on demand clause based on scheduled )
repayments
Total
Within  undiscounted
On demand 1 year cash flows
ARALER
ReEnE
REXK R—FRA R
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
31 March 2018 =E-N\F
=A=t+—H - 870,831 870,831
31 March 2017 —E—tF
=A=+—~ - 414,080 414,080

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

TR AEEZITESBABR
BEMRRBAOARBRASRAE
RZRBREHINBBER ARKE
BRI REBRMNRZERFAH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRITAZHBEBREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HREBELEAR (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+t#F
Within Within
1 year or 1 year or
on demand Total  ondemand Total
R—FR& R—FR
REEXR @t iR EK aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative settled gross: BREEMETALE:
Forward foreign EHIMES A
exchange contracts
- outflow — i (279,445) (279,445) (393,934) (393,934)
- inflow —mA 256,666 256,666 385,287 385,287
() Interest rate risk (c) 7 = 7 B

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(see note 20(a) for details) and fair value
interest rate risk mainly in relation to fixed-rate
amount due from a non-controlling interest
(see note 19(a) for details) and bank advances
for discounted bills (see note 23 for details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and variable rate financial instruments.

REE T BRITAER (FIBERH
i20() ) ARBRLRENERLE &
T Eh W s 2 T B RIR
(FEBRME9a)) RETHERERE
B (FIBRMT23) AXAAER
[ B o

AREBEEEN KRR 2 TERER
BEARZERRFEERMIT A
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2017: 50
basis points) in interest rates for variable-rate
financial instruments, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit after tax and the Group's
retained profits by approximately HK$783,000
(2017: HKS$58,000). Other components of the
Group's consolidated equity would not change
in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) increase/decrease in interest rates is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

Currency risk
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables,
payables, restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and bank
advances for discounted bills that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that
is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily US$
and RMB. The Group manages this risk
as follows:

27.
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27.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(1)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Recognised assets and liabilities
Changes in the fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts that
minimise the foreign currency risk of
certain monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss (see
notes 5 and 6(c)). The net fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts
entered into by the Group at 31
March 2018 was HK$22,779,000 (2017:
HK$8,647,000), recognised as derivative
financial instruments (note 22).

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure if
considered necessary.

The following details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

27.
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

TMTACHHEREERQR
B (&)

(d) EWaER (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i)

PRz KRR (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)

SRR (ABTIIR)
2018 2017
“g- ) e
uss RMB Uss RMB
EY ARE e ARE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FHT FHTT
Trade and bills receivables EYRBHFEREE - 6,565 = =
Restricted bank deposits R R HBITFR - - 7,547 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 22,634 154 5513 177
Trade and bills payables ERESHBEREE (1,202,770) - (923,056) =
Accruals and other payables 5t B R R H AL BT 508 - (494) (2,593) (2/460)
Bank advances for discounted bills ~ $R77EE3H ZE &R (262,029) - (336,413) -
Gross exposure arising from ERREAERAEMES
recognised assets and liabilities ZEREE (1,442,165) 6,225  (1,249,002) (2,283)
Notional amount of forward BINE R IR R R RIE
foreign exchange contracts FriRA Z 2 INES X
used to mininise the foreign 2EELR
currency risk 256,666 - 385,287 -
Net exposure arising from recognised E MR 4 & Kk & ETEE
assets and liabilities ZRRFE (1,185,499) 6,225 (863,715) (2,283)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. SRIECHERREERAA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL B2 (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) EBEEKE&E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) W E ST

The following tables indicate the
instantaneous change in the Group's
profit after tax (and retained profits)
that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKS$ and the US$ would not be
materially affected by any changes
in movement in value of the USS$
against other currencies. The increase/
(decrease) in foreign exchange rates
of 5% represents the sensitivity rate
of management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.

TREATMAEEN RS H
RKAEZEANRBZEXRNE
BEEMNES BREMBEE
fih B M3 N R EE R
Hiemf (RIRBEF)) 28
HEH -REME ERR
BB TEE T 2 BBE X
eRETHLEMEBESE
B2EMEGHMIHNENE
BER T (FFE)5%5
EREMTEINE L EEE
B EB A REaE R
ZitE/ (2fE) 2 SRE L

2018 2017
—E-N\§ —T—tF
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease)  Increase/  Increase/  (decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
inforeign (decrease) (decrease) in foreign increase increase
exchange in profit inretained  exchange in profit in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
BB RE R RE
Ex g piadil E % ikl it
t#r/ #gm/ #m/ /S GRS )/
(TR) (H2) (HY) (FB&) #m 2
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
RMB AR# 5% 260 260 5% (95) (95)
(5%) (260) (260) (5%) 95 95
uss e 5% (49,276) (49,276) 5% (34,826) (34,826)

(5%) 49,276 49,276

(5%) 34,826 34,826
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2017.

In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year, as the
US$ denominated liabilities are with
different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.

27.
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(d E¥ER(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

27.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TREEZERKRER A A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level
1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs,
that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are
not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs

27.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE - = )\¢ =

TMTACHHEREERQR
{E (II‘E)

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) A RESE (F)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BRAREGEZ 2HEER
at fair value (continued) B (&)

RAERER(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2017 categorised into

R-EB-NE=A=1-A RZE—+F=A=1+-H
ZAREFENEAR LRNEGENER
Fair Fair
value at value at
31 March 31 March
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
# IS
“Z-N\§ ZE-tF
=H =A
=t+-H =t-H
ZARE F14 2 B3 ZAnfE F18 EPEIY 38
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000 — HKSUOO  HKS000  HKS000
f#z FHr FEx TAxr  FTErn  FEr  FEr FER
Recurring fairvalue ~ EEHEALEE
measurements
Liabilities: af:
Derivative financial fTEERIA:
instruments:
- Forward foreign ~BENERH
exchange
contracts 22,7179 - 22,779 - 8,647 - 8,647 -
During the years ended 31 March 2018 BE_ZT—/\FRZF—t

and 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts in Level 2 is
determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate.

F=ZA=+—BIEFE " $1
% ZE 24 2 A B IR
mEE A B 34 c AN E

ZBRRAREBREZE
ﬁ#?&iﬁqﬁézzﬁﬁ%,ﬁﬂﬂiﬁ@

WL/\

FRMANEHIIERDHZA
SRETIARRHR G KR ME R
HBRBREBEZHAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
March 2018 and 2017.

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2018
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no
disposal of subsidiary in the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2017

On 31 August 2016, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interests in BEP International Trading Limited
and its subsidiaries, which were engaged in the
provision of management services in Hong Kong,
to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$180,000.

27.

28.

SRIAZHBAREERAS

pil

(e) AREFE (HK)
(i)  HFEAREFEZTHEE
REEZAAE

REB-—NEFER_ZF—+F
=A=t+—B AEEZEX
B H R ANFH B2 & Rt
TAZEHEEEREZAR
BYEERER-

HEMREAR

BE-Z—N\F=A=+—HLEE
HIFE—ZT—N\E=A=1+—H A&EELE
HEEMHBAR -

BLE=-Z2-—tHF=A=1+—-HILFE
R_FE—RNENA=Z+—HB REHMB—
% ¥8 3 55 = 75 i & BEP International Trading
Limited R EMBRBI (EZREEKS
REEERS) 2100%R A g KER
180,000/ 7T °

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥TEEEZKRER A 7



28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBBRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HBEZ-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

28. HEWBLQF (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued) BE—Z—tF=A=+—HLFE (&)
HK$'000
TET
Consideration received 2R E
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents B WIHE & ME L ZEWNRE 180
Total consideration received BB E 180
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REERFIEZEEREBZAM
which control was lost
Current assets nEEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 73) Y KB A (AraE13) -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRSEFEED 169
Net assets disposed of LEEEFE 169
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWE ARz W=
Consideration received BEWRE 180
Net assets disposed of LEEEFE (169)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B ARz s 11
The gain on disposal of subsidiaries is included in the HEMNBAR Z WEEF AGREBRERZ
“other income” line item in the consolidated statement [EMAIEE A
of profit or loss.
HK$'000
FET
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARELEZRESRAFE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents B W3 & KE & ZEEWNRE 180
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of HEZHE KRS EEME R (169)

Net cash inflow

BERNFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

28.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEMWEBLT (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued) BEt—Z2—tH=A=+—BLFE (&)
On 31 August 2016, the Group disposed of its 92% RZZE—RNENA=F+—H FEER—F
equity interests in May Wilson Investment Co. Ltd and B = 77 1 & E R May Wilson Investment
its subsidiaries, which were engaged in the sale of Co. Ltd R EMIB AR (EERBAEREHE
electrical and electronic consumer products in Hong BRELEFHEBEM) ZR2%R AR X
Kong, to an independent third party at a consideration {& 420,000/ T °
of HK$20,000.
HKS'000
FET
Consideration received 2R E
Consideration received in cash and BB e RBEZEMRE
cash equivalents 20
Total consideration received BB RE 20
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REERFIEZEEREBZAM
which control was lost
Current assets nEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIE - R & [ H fth FE GRIR 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEFEY 5
Net assets disposed of LEEEFE 11
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKE ATz W=
Consideration received BERRE 20
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (11)
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR = 1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &8 AF 2 s 10

The gain on disposal of subsidiaries is included in the
“other income” line item in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

HERBARZ KEEHAGABEEY
L ONE-CI T
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28.

29.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEMWELF (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued) BE—Z—tF=A=+—HLFE (&)
HKS'000
FET
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBAREEZRESRATE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents B WIHE & ME L ZEWNRE 20
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of PEZRE KA EEMEH (5)
Net cash inflow RE RN FE 15
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29. ERBEALRSF
TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into the following material AEEBBFIV T EABEALRS
related party transactions:
Key management personnel compensation TEEEASHH
All members of key management personnel are the FIEXZEEBABHRARRICES KE
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for REBESHE 2B R s B & E
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and ERNFAZHEBE (BEEEERESF L
total remuneration for them (including amounts paid to AEAAEBEER N T HRENSE)ZHT
them as employee of the Group prior to appointment W
as directors) in the year as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Salaries and other short-term HeRHEMEHEEERN
employee benefits 27,311 15,061
Post-employment benefits BEE% 1248 A 185 404
27,496 15,465
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note Me@EE st ATEIRA] (RHE6(b))
6(b)). e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

30.

31.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the
end of the reporting period but not recognized as
liabilities is as follows:

BAEE

RBEMRFTZLERRERLBBEZERKR
BARST

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment M HE R 6,438 13,323
OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 31. KREHERE
The Group as lessee AEBERAHEA

At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

RZZE—NF=A=+—8 ~XEE 2T
B EHE 2 RRKEHEERIBRFTEN
T

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HKs’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within one year —FNK 16,727 14,416
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 25,619 31,053
42,346 45,469

The Group leases properties as its office premises,
factories and warehouses and also items of machineries
under operating leases. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 3 to 5 years (2017: 1 to 5 years), some
of the leases have an option to renew the leases when
all terms are subject to renegotiation. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBRBEEHERARMRIEDE HE
REELR#SHEE -BHZEHEATFHF
PBR=FZAF(—ZE—+tF:—=0%F)"
BOHER EBELRE RIS HE AT
Bl WEBOMALAES -
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32.

GOBMTERERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE-T—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

SUBSIDIARIES 32. MEAA

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE—NF=ZA=+—HBZxZNER

March 2018: AT :

Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business shares held  paid up capital equity interest activities
RIREMAL BRTRARRA
WEARER BEhE R ER Z#fE FEAG IR A R £ TEXH
2018 2017
ZE-N\E —T+F

Indirectly held

BERE

China Mining Industrial Import&  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2017: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Export Company Limited oy e 1RERA (ZF—t%: metal minerals and

HERFELAESERAR 1RRAR 1) related industrial

materials
RERHEECREY
LEBIERH

Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2017: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Limited &5 i 1RERG (22—t 4%: metal minerals and

2REBEEAR AT 1RR®7) related industrial

materials
RERHEECEEY
LEBIERH

New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2017: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited ~ & L& EERG (=2 —+F: management
(formerly known as BEP 1R ) services
Management Company Limited) REEERS

MRBEERERAR
(AIBAREEERERAR)

BEXTEEERAR PRC Registered  RMB142,610,000 (2017: 100% 100%  Production and sale
(lterally translated as “Ningxia ¥ Bl RMB142,610,000) of utilities
Tianyuan Power Generation AR 142,610,000 EERSHERRER
Co, Ltd") (note) ( Hizt) (Z3—t%:

AR 1426100007

EEEERRERGS PRC Registered  RMB77,365,215 (2017: 100% 100%  Production and
HABBAF # Bl RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
(literally translated as AR 77,365,215 products
“Ningxia Huaxia Integrated (ZZ—tF: EERHETEA
Waste Recycling Company ARH773652157) Em

Limited") (note) (#/i£)

Note:
owned enterprise.

Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

33. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33. QREEZHMBARREK
FINANCIAL POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
Bzt FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRZEZE - =
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRFKE ek
other receivables H th fE Y 5118 278,979 275,720
Tax recoverable a] YR [E1 77 18 21 21
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEFEY 1,616 2,162
280,616 277,903
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals, deposits and other EEER ek
payables H M fE (IR 202,927 193,427
Net assets BEFE 77,689 84,476
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANQ A H AEHE R
the Company
Share capital N 25(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves Gl 73,472 80,259
Total equity B 77,689 84,476
34. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 34. St RHAE

JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

A FTRERRZEERR
URTBERAKZEEZRE  ARNEEH
REBAREFR T AV BRFEANLEE
ENBERAEFLEAARZEARR
ZTHERZRZHEMBEERR
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ——==Sut

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments

Determining whether there is an impairment
requires an estimation of recoverable amounts
of the property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments or the respective CGU in
which the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments belong, which is
the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. If there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount
shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, the Group shall determine
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the assets or
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the
future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows or
the revision of estimated future cash flows are
less than original estimated future cash flow, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts resulting from the
inability of the customers and other debtors to
make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the aging of the receivable
balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial
condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual impairment losses would be
higher than estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

34.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated useful lives
and the residual values of the Group'’s property,
plant and equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation charge
for the year. The useful lives and the residual
values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'MEN- S ,
HAMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
income taxes, including capital gain tax, if any,
in Hong Kong and PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

—N\E=ZRA=+—HLFE
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - =

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

Amendments to
HKFRSs

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment

HKAS 19 or Settlement?
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures?

Amendments to Transfers of Investment

HKAS 40 Property’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
and Interpretations mentioned below, the directors
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRS and interpretations will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

. All recognized financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortized cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All
other financial assets are measured at their
fair value at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
%Aﬂti‘%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE_—_ZT— \F=H= Jr*EUJ:iJE‘ _:‘_-‘*_-“G*

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR 35, EF-_ZE-—-N\FE=A=+—HL
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFE?EWEﬁﬂEi%ZZ%ﬁ%TEE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RIEFT 2B B EHREER A E

EEexdE (&)

ERNBHRELENFEIFREMT A (K)

MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows and
discounted at the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or
fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities
and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification. Currently, the Group
revises the effective interest rates for non-
substantial modification of financial liabilities
with no gain/loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE

35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

. The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting mechanisms currently available in
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been
introduced.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments as at 31 March 2018 and the basis of the
facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the
directors of the Company have performed a preliminary
assessment of the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group's
consolidated financial statements. All financial assets
and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on
the same basis as are currently measured under HKAS
39.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 will result in earlier recognition of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets measured at amortised costs and other
items that subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group and are currently
assessing the potential impact.

As facts and circumstances may change during the
period leading up to the initial date of application of
HKFRS 9, which is expected to be 1 April 2018 for the
Group and since the Group does not intend to early
apply this standard, the assessment of the potential
impact is subject to change.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - = +—BILEFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments revise existing requirements in
HKFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to
allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending
on the business model, at fair value through other
comprehensive income) in the case of negative
compensation payments (where the lender has to make
a settlement payment in the event of termination by
the borrower).

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3. Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—F

35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, that is,
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016 the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licencing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 2(h), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE'M:EN- -
S OB M EMEL

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-Z— \F=A=+—HIEFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
that is, at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (that is, where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE—_ZT— N\F=A=+—HILFE
35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR 35.

REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 31, at
31 March 2018 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to HK$42,346,000, the majority of which is
payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to
be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability
of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FEMBBRME"

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ-Z— \F=A=+—HIEFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses how to determine the
“date of transaction” for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of an
asset, expense or income, when consideration for that
item has been paid or received in advance in a foreign
currency which resulted in the recognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability (for example a
non-refundable deposit or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction
is the date on which the entity initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Interpretation requires an entity to determine the
date of transaction for each payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 sets out how to determine the
accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The interpretation requires an
entity to determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group; and assess whether it
is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an
entity in its income tax filings.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZEZ-T— \F=A=+—HILtFE

35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
The amendments clarify classification and
measurement of cash-settled share-based payment
under certain specific circumstances and share-based
payments in which the Group is required by local
tax law or regulation to withhold certain number of
equity instruments for settlement of the employee’s
tax obligation. The directors do not anticipate that the
application of Amendments to HKFRS 2 will have a
material impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group's share-based payment transactions.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

35.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEﬁ'
P

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZE-_ZT—\GF=A=+—HIEFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR
REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of
whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet,
the definition of investment property, supported by
observable evidence that a change in use has occurred.
The amendments further clarify that situations other
than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a
change in use, and that a change in use is possible for
properties under construction. For example, change in
use for transfer from properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business to investment
properties could be evidenced by inception of an
operating lease to another party.

The directors anticipate that the application of
these amendments will result in early recognition of
such transfers on the Group's consolidated financial
statements in future periods should there be a change
in use of any of its properties.

FEMBREI

E-E-N\F=ZA=+—HL
FECHEMEERERZHET R
R 2B R B HREEA TR

EEexdE (&)

BREERFIR BT RERREY
E S
ZEERRE HREENERARENES
B EMERENAATENTARENE
MER LAFACDHLEMEEE A EE
BRI RFEITE-—TERE KEE
& 52 RIS 4057 FT 51 & S0 B B AT 4
%ﬁHL“EE’J%ﬁ MAEZYE A REHIRA
BE-PlI ERAFEBBRED FEH
E*%%E%x&é%%ﬁ’]ﬂ%kﬁﬁﬂu
BBERARS-HHRARKEREERE-

B MARBEEAMENRGRSE -
AR SETHERINARBMELRSE
B e SRR IZATER A BER -

Annual Report 2017/18 4 %f 2017/18

191



192

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEMBBRE
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1-HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\f ZT—+tF ZE—RF ZEZ-HF CZE-@OEF
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FRET FET FET FET FRET
RESULTS S
Revenue Wz 2,392,876 1,872,541 2,269,381 633,957 220,168
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AER/ (B1B) 286,877 93,000 215,266 20,043 (3,727)
Income tax FriEH (52,901) (27,752) (46,128) (4,441) (604)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRR/ (FB) 233,976 65,248 169,138 15,602 (4,331)
Non-controlling interests R (338) 1,100 8,578 1,596 651
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of A WNETE: 2PN A
the Company for the year FERF/ (B8) 233,638 66,348 177,716 17,198 (3,680)
At 31 March
R=B=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\E —T—+F ZT—RFE —E-1F —ET-@OmF
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHER
Total assets BEBTE 3,449,563 1,864,279 3,577,369 500,890 335,294
Total liabilities BEEE (2,775,384)  (1,493,079)  (3,237,553) (334,383) (182,787)
Non-controlling interests R 8,264 8,053 7,232 (2,353) (1,009)
682,443 379,253 347,048 164,154 151,498
Equity attributable to owners of AREER AEEER
the Company 682,443 379,253 347,048 164,154 151,498

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED

FRBEZRARAF
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